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Quick read

Our business at a glance

For every £2 we make in profit
we invest approximately

£3

back into water and sewerage
assets.

Severn Trent Water Limited provides
high quality water and sewerage
services to over 3.7 million households
and businesses across the Midlands
and mid Wales.

We provide drinking water to 7.4 million people and sewerage
services to 8.5 million people across the Midlands and mid
Wales. We employ 5.624 people.

Our business is streamlined and orgarised around our three
key processes:

» water
+ waste water
* customer relations

Our key strengths:

we have amongst the fowest bills for customers in the

UK indusiry

we provide drinking water and waste water quality above
industry average

we are g streamlined business delivering against 20 Key
Performance Indicators (KPls) ’

we are committed to the long term responsible stewardship
of the business, to the environment, customers and the
cormmunities in which we live and work

Our industry

The water industry in England and Wales invests more than
£3 billion a year and employs over 27,000 people. There

are 10 water and sewerage companies in England and Wales.

The industry is monitared and controlled by government
appointed regulators who report each year on standards
and progress.

Our water quality and environmental standards

Drinking water quality is regulated by the Drinking Water
Inspectorate (DWI). Compliance with EU and UK environmental
standards is regulated by the Environment Agency.

The DWI publishes an annual report assessing the quality of
water supplied by us. It alsp reviews our standards in the previous
calendar year. The report includes the results of thousands of
tests carried out across our region. According to these tests, we
have consistently achieved 99.9% compliance with water quality
standards since 1997. The DW! annual reports are published on
their website: www.dwi.gov.uk

Our prices

The industry’s economic regulator is the Water Services
Regulation Authority {Ofwat). Ofwat sets our price limits to enable
us to finance our activities.

Each water company has to submit an annual return (the June
Return} to Ofwat covering its activities.

Ofwat measures each company's customer and operational
service against a number of so called DG performance indicators,

The June Return and the DG indicators enable Ofwat (& monitor
and compare the performance and progress of the companies,
and ensure that customers’ service standards are protected.
Ofwat produces an annual league table of performance against
these indicators across the industry.

Every five years, Ofwat sets annual price limits for each water
campany. The current price limits were set in 2004 for the period
2005-10 (the AMP4 period}. The present 2009 price review
(PRO9). will set price limits for the period 2010-15 (AMP5) and
will be completed by the end of the year.

See page 3 for our final business plan.

Our region

Our region stretches from mid Wales to Rutiand and from the
Bristol Channel to the Humber, We deliver nearly 2 hillion litres
of water a day to homes and businesses through 46,000 km
of pipes. We take away around 2.5 billion liires of waste water
per day through 54,000 km of sewers, treating it at over 1,000
sewage works.

Our vision for the future

In 2007, each water company produced a 25 year Strategic
Direction Statermment for the years 2010-35. This forms the
key foundation for the long term direction and development
of the companies. The full document is available for download
at www.stwaier.co.uk/sds

Qur vision for Severn Trent Water is to be the water and waste
water company in the UK which achieves the highest quality
and customer service standards while offering customers the
lowest prices, with great people delivering the service.

Qur strategic direction revolves around eight Key Strategic
Intentions (KSIs}, which we will deliver over the next 25 years,
while ensuring we have a sustainable impact on the environment
and playing a critical role in the communities we serve. We
focus on delivering continuously improving performance against
20 KPls. You can find more information on our KPls on pages

4 and 5 of this report.

With our business aligned around driving up standards, driving
down costs and developing great people, we have been focusing on
improving our operational performance on all fronts. We report on
our performance against our KSls and KPls in the following pages.
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Chief Executive’s review

Delivering on our promises

In 2008/09, we continued to focus
on water, to deliver improvements in
our business and to improve our
performance across the company.

Delivering continuous improvement

We said to our customers that we would make fewer mistakes,
deal with their calls more effectively and reduce the number

of causes of complaint in our business. We said to Ofwat,

our gconomic regulatar, that we would deliver reduced leakage,
improve security of supply and reduce pollution incidents.

We said to our investors that we would continue o deliver
operating {opex) and capital {capex) efficiencies and maintain
our progressive dividend. We said 10 our stakeholders that we
would operate o the highest standards of governance. We said
to our people that we would continue to improve what it's like
1o wark for Severn Trent.

We said we would do these things and we have done them,
in line with our ongoing commitment to be the best water and
waste water company in the UK, with the highest standards,
the lowest possible charges and great people.

We believe in continuous improvement and we are giving
our people the encouragement, the training, the tools and
techniques to ensure it is a fundamental everyday part of the
way we do things.

Continuous improvement is about finding ever safer, beter,
faster ways of doing things in line with the Key Strategic
Intentions we are committed to delivering over the next 25 years
and the 20 Key Performance Indicators we work towards and
assess ourselves against day after day. It's about becoming ever
more customer focused. It's about being ever more ambitious
for efficiency improverments that help lower charges, for process
improvements that help raise standards, and for workplace
improvements that attract, retain, develop and reward our

great people.

You have to keep on challenging the way that people think and
behave, you have 10 ensure that people have the right skills and
icols to solve problems, you have to ensure that you involve
people in solving problems so that you get a diversity of ideas,
you have to engender a dissatisfaction with the status quo,

you have to engender a mindset of enquiry and constructive
challenge. These things characterise the way we work.

Continuous improvement runs through our Final Business Plan for
AMPS5, Preparations for AMPS have gone well. There is still a way
10 go in the regulatory process, but we have what we believe to
be a high quality, holistic and balanced plan that has customers
at its heart, is supported by all the key stakeholders and will
enable a fair and appropriate return for our investors.

We talk more about our ptan on page 3 of this report.
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Looking ahead

Continuous improvement is central to the way we lackle the many
challenges and opportunities that lie ahead. We are very aware

of the challenging economic climate and what that means for our
customers, for our supply chain, and for our funding. We are
being very diligent in keeping our standards as high as they need
to be and canslantly seeking to make every efficiency in order to
continue keeping prices as low as possible for our customers.

We are also very conscious of our corporate responsibilities,

rat least in playing our part o address the increasing challenges
of climate change through our water reseurces, our waste
processing, our energy use and our engagement with customers
through education. We are one of the few companies that has
committed to deliver the UK government's carbon reduction
targets and we continue (o lead the way in renewable energy
generation in our sector,

In the future, the nature of our industry is bound to change,

We can't be sure exactly how, but we can and will play our
part in shaping developments, for example, around competition
in the UK regulated industry. As a customer focused business
committed to highest standards, lowest possible charges and
great people, we have ctear ideas about how it might best be
developed in a way that both benefits customers and addresses
regional water supply imbalances. We are actively discussing
these ideas with Ofwat and other interested parlies.

Whatever the future holds, we will continue focusing on water,

on our core skills, on aligning ourselves around our key processes,
and on having excellent relationships with our key stakeholders.
Continuous improvement is the best possible preparation for us
prospering now and in the days ahead.

Tony Wray
Chief Executive




Operating and financial review

Final Business Plan (2010-15)

CCWater like the way Severn
Trent's plan reflects customer
priorities. We value the transparent
and open consultations they

have had with us and other
stakeholders in developing the
programime.

(1%,

Sir James Perowne,
Consumer Council
for Water

We believe we have a high quality, holistic. balanced Final
Business Plan which has customers at its heart and takes into
account the interests of all our stakeholders.

We submitted our Final Business Plan for 2010-15 to Ofwat on
7 April 2009.

Our Plan is aligned 1o our eight Key Strategic Intentions set out in
our 25 year Strategic Direction Statement. It has customers at the
heart of it, in delivering the improvemenits they want for a price
they consider to be good value for money with the help of our
talented and commitied workforce,

Key improvements outlined in the Plan include:

Natural England is pleased to have
been involved with Severn Trent
throughout the business planning
process and we very much value
our relationship with the company.
We have been encouraged by the
commitment to maintaining and
enhancing the environment,
particularly for biodiversity and the
development of more sustainable
catchment management solutions.

(1%),

Roger Cwen,
Natural England

The Plan has been put together in a holistic and balanced way
and has been produced directly from our business planning
process. It reftects the views of the wider stakeholder groups we
consulted during its preparation. We have engaged with the
Consumer Council for Water, the Environment Agency, the
Drinking Water Inspectorate and Natural England — sharing the
results and outcomes of our plan and research, We undertook
extensive research into customer expectations and their
willingness to pay for improvements as our plan developed.

The next steps in the business plan process will be for Ofwat
to publish its draft determination of prices for consulation in
July 2009 and final determination in November 2009.

K5i Examples of key outputs planned for 2010-15

Providing a continuous
supply of quality water

* Increased spending on our assets o
- Increase network resilience

- Ensure that the environmental and drinking water quality improvements achieved since privatisétion

are maintained

* Sustainable sofutions through catchment managerment

Dealing effectively
with waste water
+ Sustainable solutions for drainage

* Improving services by reducing sewer flooding
+ Environmental improvements delivered through improving sewage treaiment works

Responding to
customers’ needs

+ Lowest possible bills rising by just 4% in real terms by the end of the period 2010-15
* Improving the quality and speed of response when cusiomers contact us

Minimising our
carbon footprint

Taking into account carbon impacts when assessing quality and environmentat improvements

Having the lowest

possible charges to keep bills down

Detivery of continued improvements in efficiency, for both operating costs and capital expenditure,

Having the right
skills to deliver

Maximising the benefits of our process, technology, workplace and siructural changes, whilst
retgining and upskilling the talent of our workforce

Maintaining investor
confidence

A plan financed 1o strike the right balance in keeping prices 6w for the long term and
maintaining investor confidence, including delivering a sustainable and progressive dividend policy

Promoting an effective
regulatory regime

Continuing o work constructively with our regulators and government on ways in which the regulatory
regime could be improved for cusiomers and the environment

+ Having a business plan thai is realistic and robust
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Operating and financial review

Delivering against our KPIs

Key performance indicator

o
n
o]
a
We measure our performance and MAT  Lost time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked?®
rogress against 20 Key Performance
P g 9 , . y ) OR  Employee motivation %*
Indicators. Qur aim is to achieve upper
quartile performance across our 20 KPIS.  MAT Water quality (test failure rate) ppm'
Cur 20 KPis are the result of a detailed and thorough examination
of the key aspects of Severn Trent Water's performance. This MAT Customer written complaints per 1,000 properties'S
includes benchmarking against comparable companies in the
water and sewerage sector and other companies with similar
characteristics in other sectors. We use a range of publicty available MAT First time call resolution for billing %%
and internally generated data to identify the population that we
should compare ourselves to. This process involves a number of - -
judgments to ensure we used appropriately comparable data points MAT Unplanpec: Interruptions > 6 hours per 1,000
for each measure. properties™
Throughout 2008/09, we have been measuring ourselves against NPR Properties at risk of low pressure per 1,000 properties®®
our KPls and the updated benchmarks we established last year.
The results are presented here.
P MAT  First time job resolution %°
We are committed to continually review and reset our KP| targets
and expectations, in line with our Strategic Direction Statement.
QR Non performance against regulatory obligations %°%'2
ATD  Capex (Gross) vs final determination %'°
MAT Capital process quality (no defects per £100k)®
Debtor days®'®
MAT  Opex vs final determination (UK GAAP) £m'
MAT Cost to serve per property - £7
We reward our people
based on the 20 KPIs. MAT  Pollution incidents {cat 1, 2 and 3) per 1,000 properties*
MAT  Sewer flooding incidents - other causes per 1,000
properties’
PPS  Sewage treatment works - breach of consents %*
Reduction in pollution Reductior in lost time Security of supply®
incidents incidents
2 7 0/ 300/ MAT  Net energy use - kWh/MI®
MLE Leakage Mi/d?

Reduction in unplanned Reduction in written customer
interruptions to supply complaints

67% 41%
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PP Q . Sewage treatment works
compliance with consents
77% 83% Upper Q . 1 0/
240.1 200.4 Upper @ o D D
10.90 6.44 Upper @ ©®
Compliance with water

B85% 88% Upper Q . qUallty standards
21.86 7.29 Lower Q . 99- 98 A)
0.46 1.21 Upper Q .

Key
85% 96% Upper Q .

Q Improved
15% 10% Median @ o @ Maintained high standards

- G No change
1. 5.0% Upper
Q . ° Page numbers 1o related articles
0.03 0.00 Upper Q o
374 331 Median Q .
480.9 500.9 Median Q .
236.82 236.53 Upper e . .
Dies:

All measures are for the peried to 31 March 2009, except as stated.

0.1 . MAT = Mgving Anruat Tolol
cos e @ @ IO

NPR = Number of properties on register
0.21 0.17 Median Q . ATD = AMP4 w0 date .

PPS = Percentage of poputation served

MLE = Maximum Likelinood Estimate
0.0% 0.0% Upper Q .

1, Asreported n June Rewwrn to Ofwar. Performance figures are provisional

) at this stage as the June Retum will be submitted o Otwat on 12 June 2009.

895 98 Median Q o 2. Actual performance across all employees and agency staff,

3. Performance based on quarerly survey cf 10% of permanent employees.

4. Measure for calendar year (o 31 December 2008.
608 622 Upper Q ° 5. Performance excludes properties billed by cther water tompanies,

6. Actua! performance based on internal data,

7. 2008 performance exchudes 1 of Summer 2007 (tooding. 2008 pert:
491 492 Upper e ‘ is 134‘.);'iroirmparz ot Scmmmé%a& lolooding ciudo. o PR

8. Measure as at 31 March 2008

9. 2009 ana 2008 performance includes impact of new pressure loggers installed
in 2007/08. Exchading pressure loggers. 2008 performance is 0.005 (2008; 0.06)
25 there has been a significant reduction in reactive identification.

10. Actual performance basaa on audited UK GAAP financial statemen:s for the year
ended 31 March 2009 and expressed in absolute ternys,

11. Actual performance based on audited regulatory accounts for the year ended
31 March 2009

12. Measure expressec as pefceriage non performance agoinst regulatory obligations.

13. Measure now expressed 25 lest failure rate (parts per million). 2008 performance
restated accordingly.
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Operating and financial review

Throughout 2008/09, we have been.
performing well against our KPIs in
line with our commitment to highest
standards, lowest possible charges
and great people.

Focus on corporate responsibility

Corporate responsibility {CR) must be at the heart of the way we
develop, manage and operate for ong term sustainable benefit
and the way we strive for highest standards. lowest possible
charges and great people. In 2008/09, we focused on aligning
our CR activities even more closely to the fundamental objectives
of our business, our eight Key Strategic Intentions {KS!s). Because
all areas of our business are linked closely to our CR agenda we
have not included a separate section in this review. We do,
however, recognise that a number of our stakeholders are
particularly interested in understanding more about some of the
key CR issues we are addressing. We have therefore produced a
separate CR summary report which is available from our websile,
alongside additional online data and information.

Focus on highest standards

This first section looks at how we have been improving and
performing in water, waste and customer service.

KSI: Providing a continuous supply of quatity water
We have a number of projects and also KPls that contribute
to ensuring we have the highest standards in our water service.

Water quality

This year we continued to achieve one of the best records in the
industry at 99.98% compliance with the regutatory standards set
by the Drinking Water Inspectorate.

QOur KPI now measures compliance with regulatory samples taken
along the whole process from reservoir to tap. This is a more
challenging measure which enables us to gain a broader and
deeper understanding and allows us to drive water quality even
higher through mare effective long term solutions.

Unplanned interruptions

We significantly improved our KPt performance from last year
by reducing the number of unplanned interruptions by 87% after
excluding the eflect of flooding at The Mythe Water Treatment
Works in July 2007. Qur KPI for unplanned interruptions to
supply is based on Ofwat's DG3 level of service. In 2008/09,
around 25,000 properties experienced unplanned interruptions
to supply on this measure, compared to around 195,600
properties in 2007/08 (due to exceptional weather that year).
This represents less than 1% of the properties connected to our
network, compared to 5.7% in 2007/08.

By analysing the problems we had in 2007, we have been able
to focus on improving our operational procedures and response
times and aim to continue to look for ways to drive up our
performance in this area.
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Low pressure

We have installed 4,000 permanent pressure loggers throughout
our distribution network ta identify more points of low pressure
and their root causes.

In the short term, as expected, this has resulted in us identifying
more properties at risk, putting pressure on our KPI performance.
This year we have identified and rectified over 9,000 properties
at risk. We have 4,142 properties on the register and we intend
to address these in the coming year. This compares to 1,546
properties in 2007/08 and represents around 0.12% of the
properties we serve.

Maintaining security of supply

We have replaced our raw water storage measure with a new
security of supply KPI. This is a more complete measure of our
ability to supply lreated water to customers as opposed 1o the
amount of raw water storage we have and is based on the Ofwat
security of supply index.

We remain on track to deliver in line with our written undertaking
ta Ofwat on security of supply index and recorded a performance
this year of 98.

We are making good progress with our major scheme at Frankley
Water Treatment Works commissioned in 2009, which will enable
us to pump up to 120 megalitres per day (MI/d) from the river
Severn into the works.

Meeting our leakage target

Our leakage was 492 MI/d in 2008/09. For the second year
running and despite the coldest winter for eight years, we have
met our leakage target of 500 MI/d set by Ofwat. In 2008/09,
we found and fixed 39,000 lezks, a simiiar number to 2007/08.

With increased focus on water efficiency, being able to reduce
leakage becomes ever more important for our customers, for
the environment and for our business. We have succeeded as
a result of better network maintenance, better response times
to finding and fixing leaks and a better understanding of where
water is used.

Each year we invest in maintaining, repairing and modernising
our extensive water network, some of which is over 100 years
old. In AMP4 we set a target of 1,100 km of mains to be renewed
over five years. We have already achieved this target and are
planning to deliver 1,230 km at a cost of 3% more than the
amount assumed in the Gfwat determination.

Improving flood pratection at our sites

Following the floods in 2007, we provided additional flood
protection at four water treatment sites. At The Mythe Water
Treatment Works, the temporary flood barriers remain in ptace
while we seek planning permission for permanent flood defences.
We are also seeking planning permission for an additional pipeline
1o bring extra supply into the Gloucester area. We continue to
liaise closely with the Gloucestershire scrutiny committee.

Investing in improving the resilience and capacity of our network
Given the demands of climate change and population growth,
investing in improving the resilience and capacity of our network
wili become increasingly important. Cur draft Water Resources
Management Plan, published on www.stwater.co.uk sets oul our
proposed strategy for maintaining the balance between supply




Putting fats, oils and grease to good use
At the heart of our vision for corporate
responsibility are projects that benefit our
communiiies, environment, custormers and

blockage causing substances down the
drain, The FOG collected is used

for biofuel and the money generated
reinvested by CSV. Our goal is a reduction

business. A great example is our project
with the charity Community Service
Volunteers (CSV), Grease Lightening.
This trial project involves doorstep

in the number of sewer blockages in this
area. This will reduce community impact,
ouwr costs, and help us to keep our bills
as low as possible for all customers.

collections of fats, oils and grease {FOG)
from homes that may usually put these

and demand in our region aver the next 25 years. Our strategy
seeks to maximise the sustainable use of our existing water
resources and includes:

= reducing leakage;

* accelerating domestic customer metering;

* improving the connectivity of our network; and

* increasing water efficiency by working with custorners to install
more water efficient equipment and promote water conservation.

We estimate that without future investment we face a potential
shortfalt of 32 MI/d over the next five years. In our Final Business
Plan, we have proposed investments that are designed to prevent
a supply shortfall and ensure that we can meet customer
dernands for water in the future.

Promoting the responsible use of water

Water efficiency plays a key part in our water resources planning.
In addition to saving water in cur own business, we have worked
on helping our customers reduce the water they use. For example,
we have run workshops with cur major use customers to hefp
them identify ways to save water and reduce their bills. We alsa
have a range of programmes to provide schools and households
with water saving devices and water saving advice, such as our
Be Smart education programme. Through this scheme, employees
work as mentars with 50 schools each year using an education
pack focused on water efficiency.

KS): Dealing effectively with waste water

Through our community and education programeme, we work with
schools, community groups, charities and other organisations to
promote both water efficiency and the responsible disposal of
waste down sinks, drains and toilets. We run a programme of site
visits, for example, where we show people first hand how the
waste water treatment process works and the consequences of
disposing of fats, oils, grease and other products which can block
sewers and result in pollution.

We also work with charities who are focused on changing
people’s behaviour around water and wasie water for the better,
These include Community Service Volunteers (see case study
above), Envision, The Small Piece Trust, The Farming and Wildlife
Advisory Group and The Wildlife Trust.

Looking after the environment

We place great emphasis on our envircnmental respansibilities.
How we abstract water, manage waste water discharges, operate
over 1,000 sewage treatment sites, 54,000 km of sewers, atmost
3.600 sewage pumping siations and how we manage resources
all have a huge potential impact on the local environment. We
have a responsibility to minimise our environmental impact and
maximise our use of resources,

Underlining the seriousness with which we take our
responsibilities, six of our 20 KPis are linked to environmental
performance, while also reflecting our broader operational
performance. The six KPIs are: breach of consents at sewage
reatment works; pollution incidents; sewer flooding; security
of supply; net energy use; and leakage.

100% compliance at our sewage treatment works

In 2008, all our sewage treaiment works again complied with the
discharge consents issued to them by the Environment Agency.
This consistently high level of compliance is amongst the best in
the industry and demonstrates our continuously improving
performance in line with compliance standards that get higher year
after year.

Fewer pollution incidents

Building on fast year's progress. we again reduced pollution
incidents in 2008. Pollution incidents in the calendar year 2008
are significantly down 25% to 313, from 417 in 2007, Of the total
recorded, eight were in the more serious categories 1 and 2,
compared with 13 in 2007. In terms of our KPI for pollution
incidents, we achieved 0.08 per 1,000 properties in 2008,

In line with the 13 point plan we agreed with the Environment
Agency and Ofwat to improve our environmental performance in
relation to polluions, we have heightened awareness and
improved our processes in order to be able to prevent, identify
and tackle poltution incidents more quickly and effectively. Our
performance is considerably better than the level envisaged in the
2007 joint plan.

Reduced sewer flaoding

We performed better than last year against our KPI measure for
sewer flooding - other causes per 1,000 properties. There is still
more to do and we have a specific improvement plan for this
area, including encouraging our custamers not to put fats, oils and
grease down the drain as well as carrying out targeted cleansing
of our network. Sewer flooding can also be caused by overloaded
sewers. Properties flooded in this way are put onto flooding
registers and solutions are investigated. In agreement with Qfwat,
we have now brought our methodology inte fine with the rest of
the water industry and as a result the number of properties on the
register in our region has come down significantly in 2008/09.

To tackle the many complexities surrounding flooding in the most
effective way, we work closely with all concerned, including local
authorities, the community and the Environment Agency.

Investing in waste water improvements

We invest heavily in every aspect of our waste water process and
network, In 2008/09, we invested £300 million in this part of
our business and currently have around 600 schemes underway.
Minworth Sewage Treatment Works. which serves over two
million people in Birmingham and the Black Country, is our
biggest ongoing scheme and one of the largest in the industry.
The work has progressed well and is nearing compleiion. It is
intended 10 enable us to achieve higher standards more efficiently
ahead of the new effluent standards which come into force

in March 2010. Other big sewage projects underway include
irmprovernents at Leicester, Stoke-on-Trent and Derby Sewage
Treatment Works.

This year, we completed our £18 million investment to build

a 21st century sewer network for Kenilworth. In Albrighton,
Shropshire, we have also invested a significani amount to
improve the infrastructure and, in turn, prevent sewer flooding.

We are working closely with government and agencies on the
requirement for us to take ownership of private sewers in our
region. This will grow our sewer network by around 50%.

Severn Tient Water Annual Report and Accounts 2009 7



Operating and financial review

Renewable energy

We have ambitious plans to expand our
approach to renewable energy and have

a target to generate 30% of our energy
from renewable sources by 2013. The
measures to achieve this include increasing
use of our two established methods:

hydro power and combined heat and

new methods: wind energy and biomass
energy crops. We have invested substantial
time and resource into both these methods
and are confident of their patential 10 help
us significantly increase our generation of
renewable energy. We intend to have our
first energy crop digester operational by
April 2010.

power (CHP) using bicgas from our sewage
reatment works. We are also developing

KSI: Minimising our carbon footprint

We are committed to reducing greenhouse gas emissions by being
more efficient in our operations and also by increasing renewable
energy generation. We have a target of generating 30% of our net
electricity demand from renewable sources by 2013, This involves
a wide range of solutions, from wind turbines, to generating
energy from biomass crops. with by far the largest proportion of
our energy generation coming from biogas generation at sewage
treatment works.

In 2008/09. we undertook a major piece of work 10 calculate our
carbon emissions for the AMP4 period and on into AMP5. Despite
the continued upward pressures of providing water to more
people and meeting higher water quality standards which require
more energy, when we take into account both our investment in
renewable technologies and energy efficiency. we have been
successful in avoiding significant growth in energy consumption
over the last five years.

For the next AMP, net greenhouse gas emissions are forecast
to remain virtuatly unchanged between 2009/10 and 2014/15.
Reductions come from:

= energy efficiency measures such as pump efficiency and real
time pump optimisation and control;

* reduced water supply as a result of reduced leakage and water
demand;

+ empioyees relocated to new energy efficient cffices such
as the new Severn Trent Centre in Coventry; and

* increased renewable energy generation.

The UK Government has a number of targets for reducing

UK greenhouse gas emissions. Whilst these targets are not
requirements on us, they are a good way of putting our progress
into context. For example, whiist the UK Kyoto target is to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions by 12.5% by 2012 (against a 1990
baseline}, our plans show a 23% reduction over the period
since 1990.

Responsible use of energy

Our net energy use KPI measures how much energy (net of
renewable energy generated by us) we consume per megalitre
of water supplied or waste water treated. In 2008/09, although
we succeeded in continuing to decrease our energy use, our
generation of renewable energy was held back, notably at
Minworth Sewerage Treatment Works, where our investment in
improving effluent quality at the site has reduced the amount of
biogas we have been able to produce there this year. As a result,
our net energy use remained broadly in line with last year, at
622 kKWh/MI during this year.

We continue to improve our energy efficiency, from increasing
awareness of our processes on site and managing them more
effectively, to acting on data to target high cost processes and
investing in more efficient plants.

We have ambitious plans to expand our approach ta renewable
energy. The measures to achieve this include increasing our use
of our two established methods: hydro power and combined
heat and power using biogas from our sewage treatment works.
We are also looking at new methods: wind energy and biomass
energy crops. We are at relatively early planning stages with both
of these methods but are confident of their potential to help us
significantly increase our use of renewable energy.
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We have engaged a consultant and are reviewing a number of
potential sites for wind energy with the intention of partnering in
a joint venture. We are also working with a partner on biomass
energy crops. This is a particularly interesting potential source of
renewable energy for us as it would make good use of land to
grow crops for energy.

Biodiversity

Our biodiversity activities range from site maintenance and
integration of biodiversity within capital scheme projects o
management of cur public access sites and the Sites of Specia!
Scientific Interest (SSSI) that lie within our landholdings.
Because of the diverse nature of these activities we have
produced a strategy which sets out how we will fulfil the
commitrment in Severn Trent Plc's Environmental Policy to ‘ensure
the effective stewardship of the biodiversity of our landholdings'
In line with this, we continue to work towards reversing the
declining condition of our Charnwood Reservoir {S551) by working
in partnership with Environment Agency (EA), Natural England
(NE}, Farming and Wildlife Advisory (FWAG), Department for
Environment, Food and Rurat Affairs (DEFRA) and the local
Wildtife Trust.

KSI: Responding to customers’ needs

Customer service standards have alse seen very positive
improvements in the last 12 months.

Resolving jobs first time

Qur aim is to resclve_jobs on the custemer’s first call to us. In
2008/09 we achieved 96% first time job resolution, compared
with 85% in 2007/08.

This performance improvement was delivered through our 24/7
Customer Operations Service Centre at Coventry and was based
upon improved customer service and operational processes.

Building on last year's progress, we continued to improve our
performance in customer service and refine our processes to find
and fix aperational problems as quickly and effectivety as possible
and we are now achieving upper quartiie performance.

Reducing custemer complaints

We succeeded in reducing written complainis by 41%, from
45,710 in 2007/08 to 27.066 in 2008/09. This is based on
written customer complaints per 1,000 properties and improves
on last year's reduction of 34%.

Better call handling

Having invested in our call handling service this year we have
seen further improvements in the service received by our
customers. We are develaping the capability of all cur teams
through a comprehensive upskilling programme, and coupled
with our continuous improvement programme, have improved
the number of times we will resolve a custormer query at the first
point of contact. In 2008/09 we have achieved 88% for our first
time call resolution improving on last year's result of 85%.

We handle a huge number of calls each year, including around
800,000 from people moving home. Resolving these calls first
time is good both for our customers and for us. In 2008/09,
we achieved 87% for our first time call resolution for billing KPI,
improving on last year's result, of 85%.




Improving all customer service standards

Atongside our KPl performance measures and in line with what
we said we would do, we have again improved our performance
across Ofwat's DG service standards.

We achieved 99.79% for DG6 (response to written billing
queries), compared to 90.72% in 2007/08. We achieved 99.95%
for DG7 (response to writien complaints), compared to 99.90%
in 2007/08. We achieved 99.85% for DG8 {meter readings}.

For DG9 (customer satisfaction with telephone calls), we are
running at 3.05% abandon rate and an engaged tone of less

than 0.5% of calls, Again, these are upper quartile resufts.

This year we fitted 44,331 meters through our free meter option
scherme, which we continue to promate to our customers.

In addition, we have invested in our website to improve it further
to become a genuine customer service centre. The facility to
manage your account online is now live, enabling customers to
quickly and easily view and pay bills, update details and subrnit
a meter reading online anytime they want to. This is part of our
ambition to enable gur customers to interact with us in whichever
way best suits them - email, website, phane, letter ar text
message.

Contributing to our good perfermance for DG8, we have made
substantial improvements to our meter reading process to ensure
we get accurate and timely meter reads. The meter read is the
start of the measured billing process, so if we get that right the rest
should follow. Following very successful trials, we will be rolling
out remote reading technology for difficult to access meters,
typically in inner city areas and high rise buildings.

Looking ahead, our focus will be to carry on improving. We want
to continue getting more cut of our systems and we want our
peaple to continue getting better and better at what they do.

Addressing the needs of vulnerable customers

While we actively pursue those who are able but unwilling to pay
their bills, we offer flexibitity for those who genuinely struggle to
pay. As a result of the downturn in the economy, we ae finding
more people need help.

This year for the first time we have set ourselves targets to
increase the number of customers on our registers for vulnerable
customers. We have created a dedicated team 1o actively seek
out customers who might need help, together with organisations
such as the Citizens Advice Bureau and Age Concern. Through
a combination of increasing need and increasing awareness,

the number of customers on our registers has grown this year.

The amount of money in the Severn Trent Trust Fund has
increased this year by £7 million to £5.5 million. We also
continue to promote our WaterSure tariff to cap charges for
vulnerable custommers who have a water meter.

Alang with the rest of the water industry we have teamed up with
the Home Office and tocal police constabularies in supporting
their distraction burglary initiative. Qur password scheme is
available 1o all our customers to reassure them that they can
check the genuine identity of doorstep callers at anytime.

In recognising the differing needs of our customers we continue
to provide literature in alternative formats such as braille, large
print and audio throughout the year,

New connections
Qur new connections team manages, fram application (0 delivery,
the connections of customers 1o water and waste water Services.

In 2008/09 the economic climate has resulied in a decling in
the level of activity undertaken. This has been most significant
in the provision of services o developers. In response to these
external pressures we have rationalised our depariment to a
single operating base at our offices in Leicester Water Cenire.
These changes continue 1o build upon improvements in our
performance, with conneciions completed within 21 waorking
days increasing from 86% in 2007/08 to 90% in 2008/09.

Customer research

In 2008, as part of the ongoing consultation process into

the business plan, further work was undertaken with the main
objectives of determining stakeholders support for the proposed
business plan, both in terms of planned increases and the
planned programme of improvements. Overall, there was
strong suppoert for our propesals and these results have

been incorporated into the Final Business Plan for PRO9.

Developing a sustainabie service for customers

Serving customers also means looking after their long term interests
as well as their immediate concerns. We continue to maintain

the serviceability of our assets. This means cairying out the work
necessary to make sure our water and sewerage systems deliver
reliable service in the future for customers and the environment.

ft takes into consideration above ground and below ground water
and sewerage assets. Our most recent assessment shows that

we have made progress. and we aim to continue to do sa.

Business customers

The Cave Review explored the ability for business customers
to choose their water supplier. We are currently considesing its
findings and will be continuing to work with refevant industry
participants in developing our services.

Focus on lowest charges

We are commitied 10 keep bills as low as possible for our
customers. Managing our operational and capital Costs is
a key contributor to this.

KSI: Having the lowest possible charges

Financial performance

The past year has seen an unprecedented period of disruption

to financial markets, leading to the so called "credit crunch’ and
wider economic recession. The first half of the year saw increased
RPI inflation, peaking at 5% in September, with a rapid fall

in the second half. Annual RPI inflation at March 2009 was
negative 0.4%.

This volatility has presented a number of challenges. The
economics of the Ofwat regulatory framework are explicitly linked
to RPI, with Ofwat's final determination for both total opex and
capex set in 2002/03 prices and adjusted by the relevant inflation
index each year (RPI for opex, COPI, a construction price index,
for capex).
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Operating and financial review

As we move into the final year of AMP4, we maintain our
objective to invest efficiencies in options to enhance long term
value for our customers, support our improvement plans and
deliver greater efficiency into AMPS5. The three key areas we are
focused on are:

accelerating our renewable energy programme 1o deliver greater
operational efficiency, enhance our natural hedge 16 energy
costs and reduce our carben footprint,

o engage with our supply chain to further our early start
contracting strategy, delivering benefits in the AMPS5 investment
programme, and

investments in econamically enhancing technology and
focations, principally the construction of the new Severn

Trent Centre.

Investing in our network

Year after year, we invest in improving the quality, resilience
and maintenance of our network. During 2008/09, we invested
£130 million (net of grants and contributions received) in
maintaining our infrastructure network. Capital expenditure,
excluding spending on infrastructure maintenance {and net

of grants and contributions received), was £476 million.

Gross capital expenditure {including infrastructure maintenance
expenditure) increased to £635 million.

We are meeting our obligations on investments and making them
more efficiently.

Our capex (gross} vs final determination KP| measures our
performance on managing the financial aspects of the delivery
of our investment programme. This measures the percentage
variance between our capital expenditure to meet our obligations
for AMP4 and Ofwat’s final determination.

This is a continuation of our work in 2007/08 to smocth the so
calted investment rollercoaster, where investment rises steeply in
years two, three and four of the AMP cycle before falling off
sharply in year five. Smoothing this out so that there is a steady
amount of investment throughout the five years is beneficial for
our contracters, because it allows them to plan their resources
more easily and cost effectively, and for us, because we can gain
from efficiencies,

Whilst we continue to be on track tc meet our regulatory
obligations and capital expenditure targets in monetary terms, the
recent rapid reduction in COPI is likely to lead to a lower than
anticipated regulatory capital value cap as we proceed into the
final year of AMP4. We remain focused on the successful delivery
of the absolute levels of expenditure previously announced,
although this may result in an overall efficiency of less than the
previously announced §%.

As we move into the final year of AMP4, we continue to carefully
progress a number of return enhancing investments that will
provide value over the longer term, These include further
renewable energy generation, the early development of capital
plans for AMPS and the new Severn Trent Centre in Coventry,

In all cases, our focus is on delivering sustainable efficiencies,
lowering the cost of our operations and therefore providing value
for our customers.
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Managing cur operating costs

Despite the economic pressures, we remain on track with our
opex vs final determination KPI, which measures the variance
between our latest formal forecast of operating costs and Ofwat’s
final determination for AMP4. The recent rapid reduction in RPI
has led to a lower than anticipated baseline final determination for
2008/09, but we have delivered an outcome this year that is in
tine with the absolute levels of expenditure previously targeted.

As we proceed into the final year of AMP4, the recent rapid
reduction in RP!is likely t¢ have a significant negative impact on
the anticipated baseline final determination, We have, however,
accelerated seme of our improvermnent plans and expect to incur
around £20 million of restructuring costs in 2009/10 which will
deliver around £5 million of additional operating cost savings in
200910 beyond our previous ptans and further cost efficiencies
in AMP5. We remain focused on the successiul delivery of our
plans and we continue our effarts to identify and pursue
additional oppertunities in this lower inflation environment.

Capital process quality

Our capital pracess quality KPI is now in place and is working
well. We achieved zero defects on handover per £100,000
spend, a reduction on last year's 0.03.

The capital process quality measure assesses our delivery of high
quality services.

Cast to serve a property

Our KPI cost to serve per property measures the tatal cost
(including operating costs, depreciation, infrastructure renewals
and third party costs) associated with serving a single property.
During 2008/09, we continued to maintain a cost base that
supparts our position of having scme of the lowest bills in

the industry.

Managing trade debt

We continue te manage our trade debt as efficiently as possible.
Despite the downturn in the economy, our debtor days
performance improved from 37.4 days in 2007/08 to 33.1 days.
This improvement is a result of enhancements made to our debt
management process, including mare customers signing up to our
water direct scheme to make payments directly from their benefits
and an increase in the range and volume of cutbound message
carmpaigns encouraging customers in debt to contact us and
agree payment plans.

Despite our impreved debior days performance overall, the
challenging economic conditions have seen an increase in
customer insolvencies and greater difficulty in collecting debt over
one year old. As a result, we increased our bad debt charge and it
now represents around 2.3% of turnover, up from around 1.9%
last year.

KSI: Promoting an effective regulatory regime

Performance against our regulatory abligations

In 2008/09, we improved our performance against our regulatory
obligations KPJ, reducing the number of areas with significant
issues to 10%. This was a significant improvernent on the 15%
we achieved in 2007/08.



Promoting an effective regulatory regime

We have played an active part in developments in the regulatory
framework and been active in supporting and exploring the
devetgpment of competition in the indusiry. We have engaged
with the Cave Review on Competition and Innovation and the
Walker Review of Charges. In particular, we believe a competition
model based on water trading could work and we are currently
iooking at how this might be developed in order to help address
the balance of water supply and demand on a national basis. This
may help to reduce the need for additional infrastructure in some
parts of the country where water supplies are low and therefore
keep costs as low as possible for all custorners.

This was one of the recommendaticns of the Cave Review.

Cave also recommends the separation of retail activity and retail
competition for non households. We believe that retail competition
is only likely to bring substantial benefits if it is coupled with
competition for water resources and should not therefore be
pursued as an end in itself.

We have also spoken at events and responded ta consultation
documents on a wide range of requlatory and competition issues
with the aim of encouraging the development of the framework to
meet the new challenges facing the industry.

We continue to engage with the Environment Agency to explore
the trade offs between the environmental benefits of improving
river water quality and the increased energy use this improvement
involves. Qur aim is to safeguard the needs of the enviranment
and address climate change while keeping our bills as low as
possible for our customers.

Maintaining investor confidence

The interests of our customers and our investors are inextricably
linked and we need access to finance to maintain and improve
our services to customers, and lower financing costs mean lower
bills. In the current economic environment, both customers and
investors are placing increasing value on stability.

As we look forward, the continuing large capital investment
programme will drive further borrowing requirements, with aur
Final Business Plan anticipating a borrowing requirement of
around £200 million a year on average over AMP5. The future
visibility of returns and cash flow are imporiant in sustaining
investor confidence in Severn Trent Water and the wider water
sector. A key element in this is the setting of an appropriate cost
of capital which ensures that water remains sufficiently atiractive
over the long term 1o both debt and equity investors to secure
financing for our planned investment programme. Cur Final
Business Plan assumes a cost of capital of 5.0% real, post tax,
consistent with maintaining an appropriate credit rating (o allow
the company to raise the funds it requires to finance future
investment at a reasonable rate and deliver an appropriate return
10 equity investors. The component parts of the assumed cost of
capital are: real post tax cost of equity of 7.7% (AMP4 7.7%), real
post tax cost of debt of 3.3% (AMP4 3.0%) and 60% gearing
(AMP4 559%).

The successful execution of our plans in the current AMP4 period,
and the basis of our PROS Final Business Plan submission to
Ofwat underpin our ability to:

* deliver a sustainable and progressive dividend 1o our equity
investors, and

* maintain an appropriate financial structure, including sustaining
a strong investment grade credit rating, which can absorb the
impact of business cycle changes and enable the funding of our
long term investment plan.

Focus on great people

KSI: Having the right skills to deliver

We are committed to continuously improving the engagement,
skills and working environment of our people. Below are
examples of how our work programmes and KPIs contribute to
improvements in this area.

Increasing employee motivation

In 2008/09, we achieved our stretching KPl employee motivation
target of 83%, improving on last year's 77%. We measure this
KPI through an annual employee survey and three mini surveys to
gain a clear ongoing measure of staff morale and motivation.

This excetlent performance has been achieved in a year of
continued emphasis on the key enablers that drive our
commitrnent (¢ highest standards, lowest possible charges and
great people. These enablers are upskilling, simple pracesses that
work, an improved workplace, improved technology that works,
and being paid for doing the right things for our customers.

Developing the skills of our people

We have focused on establishing orne way of warking for all our
people and giving everyone the encouragement, tools and
techniques 1o work that way. To this end, we have been
increasing the skills of our managers and of the workforce.

We have formal succession and talent managemen: reviews
throughout the year. This process reaches across the organisation
so that we can identify and develop talent to help people achieve
their potential.

We are continuously investing in ways 1o improve the skills of
our people, warking environments and communication. We are,
for example, enhancing our internal communication programme
so that employees can get easier access (0 the information
they need.

Impreving our management skills

In 2008, we launched the Line Manager Journey to clarify roles
and equip managers with the right skills, tools and techniques
to be able to get the best out of their teams. From the Chief
Executive to the most _junicr manager, all our managers now
have one common process of managing performance.

We have launched a leadership model and rolled out a
behavioural model for all employees. It is part of our commitment
to develop a modern workplace, where people treat each other

in a supportive, adult to adult way and share and develop
improvement plans to achieve both business and personal goals.
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Councillor Gary Ridley,
cabinet member for
city development

Coventry is undergoing

a £9.4 billion transformation
and Severn Trent is a key
part of our exciting future.

Creating a diverse workforce

We are committed to improving the diversity of our workforce.
Building on the work we have already done, in 2008 we set up a
Diversity Working Group and developed an action plan in line
with our stated belief that a diverse and inclusive culture is a key
factor to a successful business. During the year we commissioned
some benchmarking work 10 better understand our diversity
performance and identify areas for improvement. Our key diversity
statistics are available on our website and in our Corporate
Responsibility Summary Report.

Simple processes that work

We have iniroduced lean management practices across our water,
waste water and other business areas. As a result, our people —
in water reatment works, sewage depots and call centres, have
been able to connect what they do on a day by day basis to our
overall strategic direction and KPIs. Critically, they have been
given the encouragement, training and tools to start making their
own improvements with the support of their managers. This in
turn has resulted in cost reductions, improvements in customer
service and higher engagement levels among our workforce.

We are identifying and fixing issues faster, more efficiently

and more fundamemally, getting more things right first time,
eliminating waste from our processes. As a result, our
performance is improving on interruptions to supply, leakage,
reducing energy use and more. To date, around 1,500 of our
5.624 people have been introduced to the tools and technigues
and are now using them in their day to day work. Building on
our successes this year, we will continue to invest in our safer,
better, faster ways of working throughout the business. We are
developing lean change champions and an academy of experts
to help ensure this way of working continues to be our way of
working. Alongside our training in process improvement we
continue to invest in developing the technical and professional
qualifications of our people through apprenticeships and
continuous learning.

An improved workplace
We are investing in our workplace to reflect the quality of the
way we work, creating great enviroruments for great people.

Our property portfolio includes 7,000 sites across the 21,000 km?
Severn Trent Water region. As reported last year, we have been
working to a strategy of creating a portfolio of workspace for the
business at the right cost, the right guality, of the right amount

in the right location and held for the right period of time.

This includes the development of the new Severn Trent Centre
in Coventry, which is progressing well, with a number of key
milestones being achieved in 2008/09. Severn Trent Centre
is part of the programme of workplace improvements to

set new standards for our warking environments and we plan
1o implement them across all of our remaining sites.

Improving health and safety standards

Creating a safe place to work is at the heart of our commitment o
creating a great place to work. We continually facus on improving
safety, quality and standards across the arganisation.
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Reducing lost time incidents

In 200B/09, we improved our performance on our health and
safety KPI of lost time incidents per 100,000 hours by 30% -
down to 0.43, compared with 0.6 in 2007/08. In achieving
this significant improvement, we beat our target of 0.51.

Our RIDDOR {Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences [Regulations}) rate is 0.33 - a 39% improverment
on our 20G7/08 rate of 0.54.

Demonstrating safety improvement plans )

Last year, we set out a 10 point strategy plan on safety, quality
and standards. The plan covers setting a standard for personal
protective equipment; improving our incident investigation;
developing safety hazard workshops for the senior managers;
developing an audit programme based on hazard and risk priority
waork; working to improve the performance of our contractors,
engaging our employee representatives in safety committees and
having our directors carry out safety and environmental tours.
This year, we have been cascading the plan down through the
organisation, with line managers producing their own safety
improvement plans reflecting the 10 points.

Our Safe and Unsafe Acts {SUSA) safe behavioural management
system is very much an active part of the way we build
behavioural safety into our everyday business. This year we put
additional effort into ensuring management teams achieved their
target number of SUSA discussions.

In 2008/09, we had four British Safety Council audits at a variety
of facilities. Ore site received five stars, the highest grade, and
three received four stars,

We also entered 19 of our business units for Royal Scciety for
the Prevention of Accidents safety awards. 17 business units
received a range of awards, with Severn Trent overall, achieving
a Gold Award for safety improvements.

We are commitied to improving the long term physical quality.
security and safety of the assets as well as the safety of our
people. This is why we focus on sustainable improvements not
only in our health and safety culture but also in the quality of
our assets through our extensive safety review and engingering
modifications and refurbishments,

Comprehensive site safety review

We completed a comprehensive healih and safety process review
of the engineering and operational assets at all our water and
wasie water sites in 2007/08. In total we surveyed 6,646 sites.
During 2008/09, we carried out a wide range of improvements
prioritising work based on the level of risk.

Our engineering standards crganisation continues to look at asset
safety on more unified standards for the engineering, safety and
design of our fulure assets. A substantial proportion of our new
design templates for AMPS contracts are now in place.

Safety far suppliers

During the year, we held five supply chain forums for health and
safety and quality management. We ran three for contractor
health and safety, one at the quality working day for suppliers and
one for excavation contractors on the risks of high voltage cable
strikes, Over 100 supplier companies have attended one or more
of these forums across the year.



We closely monitor the safety and health performance of our
contractors. Overall, our contractors have a RIDDOR reportable
incident rate of 0.38 events per 100,000 hours worked. We also
actively audit how our contractors manage heatth and safety
risks on their sites. Drawing on the data gathered from these
monitoring programmes, we work with our contractors to identify
improvernent initiatives.

Working as one with our suppliers

We are investing in ever stronger relationships with our
contractors and suppliers. We aim to manage the whole supply
chain responsibly, from supptliers through to customers.

We make sure that we are working with responsible suppliers,
based on their environmental, health and safety, ethics and
human rights track record. We are also looking at identifying areas
where our suppliers will be able to help us achieve some of our
strategic objectives, such as reducing our carbon footprint.

We appeinted our AMP5 contractors in March 2009, well ahead
of others in the industry. This is a key step in our One Supply
Chain approach, where everyone involved in the delivery of our
AMPS programme, will work together as one team,

Itis a continuation of our work in 2007/08 to smooth the so
called investment rollercoaster, where investment rises steeply
in years 2, 3 and 4 of the AMP cycle before falling off sharply
in year 5, Smoothing this out so that there is a steady amount
of investment throughout the five years is beneficial for our
contractors, because it allows them to plan their resources
more easily and cost effectively, and for us, because we can
gain from efficiencies.

In keeping with our aim to have fewer, deeper and more mutually
beneficial relationships, we are dealing with fewer contractors for
AMPS5, 11 rather than 22 for AMP4.

Our 171 AMPS contractors are Balfour Beatty, Barhale
Construction, Biwater Treatment Ltd, CostainMWH, Enterprise,
Interserve, LoRimtech, May Gurney, Mott MacDonald Bentley,
Morgan Est and North Midiand Construction.

Our award winning two year supply chain management
programme with Nottingham Trent University draws participants
from throughout our business and our contractors and suppliers.
The programme allows our employees, contractors and
suppliers to work together on areas of joint interest, in a positive
environment to deliver business benefits, Key outputs from this
programme have already been implermented in the company this
year or are part of our strategy around AMP3.

Improved technology that works

In 2008/09, we aligned our IT investment to our eight KSIs and
focused it on helping us provide our day to day business services
more efficiently and effectively. We also reorganised the IT team
around service delivery, development and strategy on the supply
side and around our core business groups on the demand side.

The key objective is to ensure that |T supports our business as
effectively as possible. To this end, we are investing in technology
to improve key processes that enable us to work better together and
improve our performance in water, waste water, customer relations
and ol finance, HR and procurement functions. A key element

of this investment is our SAP programme and the process
improvement it will deliver. We have completed the detailed design

for this programme and have begun the implementation phase.
We are also looking at how lo implement new technology o
support a far more flexible and mobile workforce and set of
working practices, so that our peaple can work as effectively
as possible from wherever hey need to be.

Looking ahead

We intend 10 continue to deliver on our promises and (o build on
the wide ranging performance improverments we have achieved
in 2008/09 against our 20 KPIs and in line with our eight KSis.

We believe we have submitted a high quality Final Business

Plan for PRO9 that balances the interests of all stakeholders:
custemers, employees, suppliers, economic and environmental
regulators, and investors. In the coming months, we look farward
to continuing our preparations for AMPS, including working
towards final determination of our plan.

We intend to continue working closely with everyone concerned
on regulatary reforms, notably competition and the adoption of
private sewers. We welcome these changes and will make sure
we are in the best position for our customers and our shareholders.

In these challenging economic times where quality, prudence and
long term thinking are at a premium, we will look to apply our
robust funding strategy in order 1o continue securing the finance
we need to fund investment gver the next 25 years and beyond.

Above all, we intend to make sure we are constantly looking
at the long term stewardship of the business o ensure we
continuously improve standards, keep on lowering costs and
further develop our great people in the years ahead.

Tony Wray
Chief Executive
Severn Trent Water
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Operating and financial review

Financial performance

The past year has seen an unprecedented period of disruption
to financial markets, the banking sector and other financial
institutions. These events have combined to create the so called
‘credit crunch’ and a wider economic recession. The speed of
these events has also presented its own challenge and we have
witnessed first, a rapid rise in retail price inflation followed by a
rapid decline with annual RPI inflation at a negative 0.4% and
declining by the March 2009 year end. The group reacted quickly
1o events, meeting the challenges, sustaining a sound financial
performance throughout the year and ending it in a strong
liquidity position. When it became apparent that credit was
becoming more difficult to obtain. with some traditional funding
sources and markets effectively closed, the board took the
decision to 'pre fund’ a major part of our investment and cash
needs for up to the next two years. Following this decision, we
took a number of steps including successfully issuing new bonds
to the sterling market in January, raising £400 million repayable
in January 2018. These decisions have, of course, a short term
economic cost as we are now helding cash, deposited on lower
rates than our current borrowing costs. However, it is the view of
the board that, despite the cost, in these unprecedented times,
we should secure the funding required, maintaining our services
10 customers and sustaining our investment programme.

The beard continues to watch carefully the evolution of both the
credit markets and the general economic situation so we may
seek out the best options to manage the business in these
volatile ecanomic times but the group finished the year ended
31 March 20089 in a strong liquidity position.

Fhe financial statements on pages 23 to 48 report both the
company and consolidated results of the Severn Trent Water
Limited group of companies. The group report provides a
complete view of activities, as certain financing arrangements
for the benefit of the group are facilitated though the company's
subsidiaries. This financial review therefore refers to the
consolidated resutts of the Severn Trent Water Limited group.

Results

The group’s turnover increased by 4.7% in 2008/09, to £1.324.9
million. Sales prices increased by 5.07% (including inflation) from
1 April 2008, with a decline in commercial consumption reducing
revenues by around £20 million. The rapid rise in the first half year
and then fall in retail price inflation (RPI} has presented a number
of challenges. The company, which operates under an RPl model
as reguiated by Ofwat, faced rising costs in the first half year which
we worked hard to contain, while seeking to obtain value from

the falling rates in the latter half. In the company's business, lead
times on procured items, particularly on the capital investment
programme, are longer and this challenge has been difficult.

Operating profit before exceptional items {underlying operating
profit) increased by 3.8% on the previous year to £488.3 million.
Beyond the increase in turnover, a number of factors impacted
underlying operating profit, principally: an increase in energy

and commodity costs of £10.4 millien, an increase in the bad
debt charge of £6.6 million, increase in depreciation charges

of £15.6 million and other increases in our cost base, net of
efficiencies, of £4.2 million.
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There was a net exceptional charge of £15.4 million
(2008: £63.3 million) comprising:

restructuring costs of £13.7 million arising from the programme
to restructure 2nd realign the business;

a net credit of £1.5 millien arising from the floading incidents
that affected the company’s water and sewerage networks
during the summer of 2007; and

a charge of £7.2 million arising from the settlement and
closure of the requlatory issues that arose in previous years.
This includes a Court imposed fine of £2.0 million and costs of
£0.2 million from two offences relating to leakage data supplied
te Ofwat in 2001 and 2002 and a provision of £5.0 million for
additional contributions to the Severn Trent Charitable Trust as
agreed wiih Ofwat.

.

.

The group's netinterest payable was £187.3 millicn

(2008: £166.8 million). Finance costs on pension obligations
increased by £13.3 million as a result of a higher discount rate,
whilst the expected return on assets was Jower because the value
of investments declined.

The total tax charge for the year was £117.6 million

(2008: £43.3 million) of which current tax represented a charge
of £65.2 million (2008: £64.8 million) and deferred tax a charge
of £52.4 million (2008: £21.5 million credit). The current tax
charge before adjustments in respect of prior years represents
26.3% (2008: 30.3%) of the group’s profits before tax.

Profit for the financial year was £164.0 million (2008:
£197.0 million).

Capital structure

The group is funded using a mixture of equity and debt (including
fixed rate, index linked and floating rate). The group continues to
believe that the appropriate long term gearing level of the
company is 60% net debt:RCV. However, given the current and
ongoing uncertainties in the ¢redit markets, the board believes it
is prudent in the near term {o retain as much liquidity and
flexibility as possible. As such the board does not expect to
pursue ihe targel gearing fevel of 60% net debt:RCY until the
credit markets improve.

2009 2008

Em £m
Cash and short term deposits {160.0) (448.7)
Bank overdrafts 0.2 383.0
Bank loans 547.8 620.5
Cther loans 2,964.7 2.540.3
Obligations under finance leases 343.9 385.0
Net debt 3,696.6 3,480
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,175.8 1,243.0
Total capital 4,872.4 4,7231

Net debt at 31 March 2009 was £3,696.6 million

(2008: £3,480.1 million). Of the net debt 64% {2008: B0%)
was represented by fixed interest borrowings and $1% (2008:
90%) was represented by amounts payable after five years,

Cash flows

Operating activities generated a net cash inflow of £767.9 million
(2008: £676.3million). An ocutflow of £161.4 million (2008:
£139.8 million) was utilised in the servicing of financing



arrangements. Net investing activities used £588.8 million
(2008: £543.9 million) which mainly included the continuing
capitat expenditure to meet the cormpany’s ebligations under the
AMP4 capital programme. Dividend outflows amounted to
£154.7 million {2008: £263.1 million).

Treasury management

The Severn Trent Water group’s treasury affairs are managed
centrally as part of the Severn Trent Plc group and in accordance
with its Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Statement. The
treasury operation’s primary role is to manage liquidity, funding,
investment and the group’s financial risk, including risk from
volatility in interest and, to a lesser extent. currency rates and
counierparty credit risk. Its activities are subject to a set of
controls commensurate with the magnitude of the borrowings and
investments under its management. The board determines
matters of treasury policy and its approval is required for certain
reasury transactions,

The group uses financial derivatives solely for the purposes of
managing risk associated with financing its normal business
activities. The group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for financial trading purposes. The group uses a
limited number of currency swaps and interest raie swaps {0
redenominate external borrowings into the currencies and interest
rate coupon required for group purposes. The group's policy for
the management of interest rate risk is 10 have a balanced
portfolio of debt with a mix of term and interest rate structures
that diversiftes its risk and is appropriate to the long life of its
asset base. The details are periodically reviewed to respond o
changing market and regulatory conditions and with regard to
regulatory prenouncements. The group's business does not
involve significant exposure to foreign exchange transactions,

The group renewed for five years a £200 million bank facifity in
July 2008. The group has £160 million in cash and cash
equivalent, following the issue of a £400 million 6% nine year
sterling bond in January 2009. The group also has an undrawn
£500 million committed bank facility that matures in 2013 and
post year end has signed a further European Investment Bank
(EIB) facitity of £150 million, which is available for the group

to draw down over ithe next two years. The group is funded for
its investment and cash flow needs for up 10 the next two years,

Cash is invested in deposits with highly rated {A+) banks and
tiquidity funds (AAA) and the list of counterparties is regularly
reviewed and reported to the board. The group’s policy for the
management of interest rate risk requires that no less than 45%
of the group’s borrowings should be at fixed interest rates, or
hedged through the use of interest rate swaps or forward rate
agreements. At 31 March 2009, interest rates for some 64%
of the group's net debt of £3.686.6 million were fixed.

The long term credit ratings of Severn Trent Water Limited are:

Severn Trent
Long term ratings Water
Moody's* A2
Standard & Poor's™ " A

* On 20 May 2009, Moody's confirmed the ratings for the group and announced
that they have placed the ratings under review for possitle downgrade.

** On 23 December 2008, Standard and Poor’s confirmed the ratings for the
group, and announced that they were subject to a ‘negative outlook’.

Further details of the group’s borrowings, investments and financial
instruments are contained in note 12 to the financial staternents.

Critical accounting policies

In the process of applying the group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make certain judgments, estimates and
assumptions that they believe are reasonable based on the
information available. The more significant judgments and key
assumptions and sources of estimation uncestainty are
summarised below:

Depreciation and carrying amounts of tangible fixed assets
Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value
for tangible fixed assets requires estimates 10 be made of the
useiful lives of the assets. The estimates are based on engineering
data and the group’s experience of similar assets. Details are set
out in note 1 d to the financial statements.

Retirement benefit abligations

Determining the amount of the group’s retirerent benefit
obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits requires
assumptions 1o be made concerning long term interest rates,
inflation, salary and pension increases, investment returns and
longevity of current and future pensioners. Changes in these
assumptions could significantly impact the amount of the
obligations or the cost of providing such benefits. The group
makes assumptions concerning these matters with the
assistance of advice from independent qualified actuaries.
Details of the assumptions made are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires
judgments to be made regarding the result of negotiations with,
and enquiries from, tax authorities. The assessments made are
based on advice from independent tax advisers and the status of
ongoing discussions with the relevant tax authorities.

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Assessing the financial outcome of uncertain commercial and
legal positions requires judgments to be made regarding the
relative meriis of each pariy’s case and the extent to which

any claim against the group is likely to be successful. The
assessments made are based on advice from the group’s internal
counsel and, where appropriate, independent legal advice.

Investment

The financial year 2008/09 was the fourth year of the AMP4
period (covering 2005-10}. During the financial year, the
company invested £635.3 milion (before contributions o
infrastructure assets) in fixed assets. Adjusting for minor timing
differences and modifications to the AMP4 capital programme
{notified to Ofwai through the change control process) we
caontinue to be in line to achieve this programme with capital
expenditure, net of grants, conuibutions and other income

(UK GAAP) of £2.6 billion. Details of the investment programme
are set out in the business review.
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report, together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Principal activities
The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Severn Trent Plc.

The principal activities of the company and its subsidiary
undertakings are the supply of water and the treatment and
disposat of sewage in the UK. There have not been any significant
changes to the company's principal activities in the year under
review. The directors are not aware, at the date of this report, of any
likely major changes in the company'’s activities in the next year,

Business review

The company is required 1o set out in this report a fair review

of the business of the company during the financial year ended
31 March 2009, the position of the company at the end of

the financial year and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the company {known as a "business review’}.

The information that fulfils the requirements of the business
review can be found in the following secticns of the operating and
financial review:

Review of results Page 4-12, 14-15

Operaticnal performance Page 6-13
Financial performance Page 14-15
KPIs Page 4-12

Severn Trent Water
final business plart 2010/15 Page 3

Principal risks and uncertainties are detailed on page 21 of the
Governance and risk assurance report.

Dividends and reserves

The company’s dividend policy is to declare dividends which are
consistent with the company's regulatory ebligations. The amount
declared is expected to vary each year further {0 consideration of
these obligations. The ordinary dividend declared by the company
in 2009 amounted 1o £154.7 million (2008: £263.1 million).

Transfers to reserves are setout in note 15 to the financial statements.

Directors

The directors of the company who served during the year and up
to the date of this report are set out below:

Tony Ballance
Bernard Bulkin®
Richard Davey*
Sir John Egan®
Martin Heuston®
Martin Kane
Martin Lamb™
Michael McKeon
Barcness Noakes®
Andy Smith
Tony Wray

Retired 23 January 2009

*non-executive director

Gordon Fryett was appointed as a non-executive director with
effect from 1 July 2009
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Directors’ interests

All of the directors at the year end are also directors of Severn
Trent Plc. In accordance with the UKLA Listing Rule 9.8.6, their
interests in the share capital of Severn Trent Plc are disclosed in
the Annual Report and Accounts of that company for the year
ended 31 March 20089,

None of the directors retain any notifiable interest in the shares of
the company or any other subsidiaries as at 31 March 2009,

Directors’ remuneration and annual bonus plan
Remuneration for executive directors comprises the following
elements:

* base salary and benefits
* annual bonus plan

* long term inceniive plan
* pension plan

As all directors are also direciors of Severn Trent Plc, details of
their emoluments can be found in the Annual Report and
Accounts of Severn Trent Plc,

As outlined in the Severn Tremt Plc Report and Accounts, the
non-executive Chatrman, Sir John Egan. and non-executive
directors, do not participate in the company's incentive
arrangements, i.e. annual bonus or share schemes.

Base salaries

Base salaries are reviewed annually for each director and are
determined with regard to the market median for similar roles in
publicly quoted utility companies of a comparable size and so far
as practicable, undertaking similar activities. Salaries are set with
reference to individual performance, experience and contribution
together with developments in the relevant emptoyment market
and internal relativities.

In addition direciors receive a benefits package which includes
car allowance, membership of company pension scheme or cash
allowance in lieu, private medical insurance, life assurance and
incapacity benefits scheme.

Annual bonus plan

The directors’ bonus plan focuses on the achievement of specific
strategic goals that are closely linked to the company's KPls and
which are intended to drive the creation of operational
efficiencies. The bornus cutturn operates on a balanced scorecard
of measures, based on the 20 KPIs which include operational
performance, teakage and customer service. The plan attributes a
points scare to each KPI and bonus entitlement is determined by
reference 1o the aggregate number of points achieved across all
the KPIs. Zero bonus is payable if perfermance against each KPI
is less than or equal to the 2007/08 ouiturn. Bonus targets were
set and measured for the period 1 Aprit 2008 o 31 March 2009,

All of the targets are considered by the board to have an impact on
the longer term financial performance of the company and a number
of them are reported to Ofwat. As such, directors’ remuneration is
clearly linked to the standards of performance in connection with
the carrying out of functions of a relevant undertaker.



The score of 2,120 points delivers a bonus payment of 51.8%
of the bonus maximum. The actual bonus payments awarded
o each director are detailed below:

Consistent with the latest developments in institutional guidelines,
the rules of the annual bonus plan now provide that the
commitiee may reclaim some or all of the afier tax part of

any bonuses awarded to executive directors if it transpires Value of
that the bonus calcelation was based on calculations which banus
are subsequently demonstrated to be materially incorrect. Brect ﬂwa'g
wecior
The annual bonus opporiunily for the executive directors was
120% of salary. For the achie{rement of target performance, 60%  'ony Ballance 124.589
of salary would be earned. M?gére:(:ﬂrlel‘(eon ;TT’ 57:11 gg
The tabte below shows the exteni to which the KPI targets were Andy Smith 185,400
achieved during 2008/09: Tony Wray 333.720
0708 08/09 Paints
KP) Measure outturn  outturn  scored  50% of the above bonus awards is deferred into shares to be
1 Lost time incidents held for three years following payment and subject to continued
per 100,000 hours worked 0.61 0.43 180 €mployment unless the Severn Trenlr. Pic Remuneration
2 Employee motivation % 77% 83% 100 Committee determines it is appropriate to release the shares )
3 Water guality in 'goo_d leaver' cases. Inthe case of belqw board level executives,
(test failure rate) ppm 2401  200.4 100  ©one third of the bonus award is deferred into shares.
4 Customer written complaints Details of bonus awards for the year ended 31 March 2009 are
per 1,000 properties 10.90 6.44 145 shown in the table of directors’ emoluments in the Severn Trent
5  First time call resofution Plc Annual Report and Accounts.
for billing % 85% 88% 116
6 Unplanned interruptions Share Matching Plan
> 6 hours per 1.000 properties  21.86 7.29 174 At the 2009 Annuzl General Meeting of Severn Trent Plc,
7 Properties at risk of low shareholder approval is being sought to introduce a Share
pressure per 1,000 properties 0.46 1.21 O Matching Plan. The plan wil allow executive directors to receive
8  First ime job resolution % 83% 96% 100 matching share awards over those shares which have beert
9 Non performance against acquired under the deferred share component of the annual
regulatory obligations % 15% 10% 100 ponus plan as described above. Further deiails of the proposed
10 Capex {Gross) vs Share Matching Plan can be found in the Severn Trent Plc
final determination % 1.7%  5.0% 100 Annual Report and Accounts,
11 Capital process quality
(no of defects per £100k) 003  0.00 100 Long Term Incentive Plan
:||§ g;g:(o;:?%sal determination 374 331 31 Directors may also participate in the Severn Trent_ _Plc Long
(UK GAAP) Em 480.9 5009 100 Term Incentive Plan (LTIP). Under thl_s plan conditional awards
14 Cost to serve per property - £ 236.82 23653 0 of pgrforma_nge sha_res are made to directors up to an annual
15 Poliution incidents maximum limit. This seeks to reward the creation of long term
(cat 1, 2 and 3) value and align the company’s incentive arrangements with the
per 1 ‘000 properties 011 0.08 273 interests of shareholders, Further details are contained in the
16 Sewer flooding incidents Severn Tremt Ple Annual Report and Accounts.
9 gggr;ri:zer;ier 0.21 017 64 Share Incentive Plan
17 S;ewage treatment works ' ' In 2007 the company relaunched an all erployee Share
— breach of consents % 0.0% 0.0% ij00  Incentive Plan which included a performance condition based
18 Security of supply 05 98 145  on achievernent of 18 of the KPIs. E_m_p!oyees of Severn Trent Plc
19 Net energy use - kWh/MI 608 622 o  and Severn Trent Water Limited participate in the plan. For the
20 Leakage MIid 491 492 172 year 2008/09 the performance condition is based on all 20 KPIs
and awards of shares to the value of £463 will be made to all
Total KPI points achieved 2120 eligible employees.

Directors’ and officers’ indemnities

Directors and officers are indemnified by the cempany against
any costs incurred by them in carrying out their duties including
defending any proceedings brought against thern arising out

of their positions as directors in which they are acquitted or
judgment is given in their favour or refief from any liability is
granted to them by the court.
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Directors’ report

Policy on the payment of creditors

The company either uses its own standard terms and conditions
entitled 'General Conditions of Contract relating to the supply of
Gaods/Services or the Execution of Work' (copies are available
from the Purchasing Department, Severn Trent Water Limited,
2297 Coventry Road, Birmingham 826 3PU) or nationally agreed
terms and conditions of contract such as ICE 6th Edition for Civi
Engineering Works and G90 terms and conditions for Mechanical
and Electrical Works.

Terms of payment are stated on each purchase order issued

by the company. Suppliers are able to negotiate their awn
payment terms which can differ from these, as part of the tender
process. Trade creditors at year end reflected 26 days purchases
(2008: 30 days).

Research and development

Expenditure on research and development was £3.8 million
including £0.53 million spent on fixed assets {2008: £4.3 million
including £0.7 million on fixed assets}). Details of the research and
development activity undertaken by the company during the year
are set out in the operating and financial review on pages 6 to 15.

Employees
The average number of employees during the year was 5,624
(2008: 5.578).

Regulation: ‘Ring fencing’

In accardance with the requirements of the Water Services
Regulatory Authority, the board confirmed that, as at 31 March
2009, it had available to it sufficient rights and assets, not
including financial resources, which would enable a special
administrator to manage the affairs, business and property of the
company in order that the purposes of a special administration
order could be achieved if such an order were made.

Regulation: 'Cross directorships’

It is the policy of the company that directors and employees of the
company may be directors of related companies when this is in
the best interests of the company, and where appropriate
arrangements are in place 1o avoid conflicts of interest.

Conflict of interests

The Companies Act 2006 {the Act) rules on directors’ conflicts
came into force on 1 October 2008. These rules provide four
statutory duties:

* a duty not 1o accept benefits from third parties;

* a duty to disclose any interest in a proposed transaction or
arrangement with the company and a separate and
independent duty to disclose any interest in an existing
transaction or arrangement with the company (transactional
conflicts); and

* a duty to avoid conflicts of interest {situational conflicts) unless
authorised.
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The Act allows board authorisation of situational conflicts where
the directors have the relevani powers.

In September 2008, the directors of Severn Trent Water Limited
were requested 1o complete a questionnaire to determine whether
any actual or potential conflicts needed authorisation. The board
fully reviewed the completed questionnaires and noted that no
confiicts arose.

For any actual or potential conflicts that arise post 1 October
2008, the following procedure has been adapted by the board to
consider and, if it sees fit, to authorise situations where a director
has an interest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the
interests of the company:

* the director will notify the Chairman and Company Secretary of
the actual or patential conflict;

+ the Severn Trent Plc Nominations Committee will consider the
notification and determine whether it needs to be proposed 10 a
board meeting for authorisation; and

* the conflict will be considered by the board at a scheduled
board meeting.

Full details of the conflict wilt be semt to directors in advance of
the meeting. If there is a major conflict or it is decided
authorisation should not wait until the next scheduted meeting,
the board would be asked to authorise the conflict by way of
written resoiution.

fn addition to reviewing any conflicts notified and proposing them
for authorisation by the board, the Nominations Committee
monitors changes te previously notified conflicts and any
conditions imposed. Half yearly reports are made to the board of
all directors’ conflicts and directors are reminded from time to
time of their obligations. An annual review of cenflicts is carried
out and this is incorporated into the year end process of verifying
directors’ interests.

Going Concern

The company cperates in an industry that is currently sulject

to economic regulation rather than market competition. Ofwat,
the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation 0 set price
limits that it believes will enable the water companies to finance
their activities. As a consequence the directors believe that the
company and the group are well placed to manage their business
risks despite the current uncertain economic outlook. The
company and the group are funded for their investment and

cash flow reeds for up 1o the next two years,

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the company and the group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Accerdingly, we continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the annual report and accounts.



Auditors

In accordance with Section 386 of the Companies Act 1985, the
company has elected to dispense with the obligation to appoint
auditors annually. Oeloitte LLP will, therefore, remain as auditors
until further notice.

In the case of each of the persons who are directors of the
company al the date when this report was approved:

so far as each of the directors are aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware;
and

each of the directors has taken all the steps that he/she ought
to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Relevant audit information means information needed by the
company's auditors in connection with preparing their report.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted with the
provisions of section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985.

By order of the board

+ Nowefour

Fiona Smith
General Counsel and Company Secretary
28 May 2009
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Governance and risk assurance

Severn Trent Governance

Severn Trent Plc is the ultimate holding company of Severn Trent
Water Limited. Since March 2007, as part of the strategy of
focusing on water, the boards of directors of Severn Trent Plc
and Severn Trent Water Limited have been identical.

Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water Limited operate as distinct
legal entities. The boards have regard 1o the Severn Trent Plc Board
Governance docurnent and the Severn Trent Water Limited Matters
Reserved to the Board, and are assisted through the management
of separate agendas, meetings and minutes by the Company
Secretariat and are advised in their meetings by the Company
Secretary where appropriate.

The relationships between Severn Trent Water Limited, the
regulated entity, and our non regulated companies such as
Severn Trent Services are monitared and controlled to ensure that
we comply with our Ofwat obligations on arm's length transactions.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2009, Severn Trent Ple was
compliant in its application of the June 2006 Financial Reporting
Council Combined Code, with the exception of Code provision
A.3.2 which requires that at least half the board, excluding the
chairman, should comprise non-executive directors determined

by the board to be independent. Martin Houston retired from the
board as an independent non-executive director on 23 January
2008 and the board announced its intention to commence the
search for a suitable independent non-executive director to appoint
to the board at that date. On 22 May 2009, the board announced
the appointment of Gordon Freyett with effect from 1 July 2009.

The Severn Trent Plc board has established an effective
commitiee structure to assist in the discharge of its responsibilities
to the group. The terms of reference of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nominations Committees comply with the provisions of the
2006 Combined Code and are available for inspection, together
with the terms of reference of the Corporate Responsibility
Committee and Executive Committee, on the Severn Trent Plc
website [www.severntrent.com) or on written request from the
Company Secretary at the address given on the back cover of

this document.

In 2008, the board undertook a review of the Severn Trent
Governance Framework. The purpose of the review was 1o
ensure that:

« the framework accurately reflected the Severn Tremt
organisation and structure;

the framework set out and reinforced Severn Trent's values and
supported the group in working and behaving in the right way;
the risk and assurance processes were a robust and integral
part of the framework. and

« the framework reflected best governance practices.

»

The review compieted in November 2008. At the request of the
board, Company Secretariat has embarked on a plan 1 embed
the framework throughout Severn Trent which is due to complete
in March 2010.

20 Severn Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2009

Severn Trent Water Limited

Operating structure

Day to day operational pricrities within Severn Trent Water are
led by the Chief Executive and his executive management team,
who together comprise the Executive Committee. During the year,
the Executive Cemmittee comprised the executive directors and
senior executive managers responsible for key central and
operational areas.

The Executive Committee oversees the development and
execution of the Severn Trent swrategy and has accountability for
delivering business results.

The operational structure aligns the organisation with the
processes that matter o customers and drives greater efficiency.

Internal control and risk management

The board has overall responsibility for the group’s system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The board
reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal contral,
including financial, operational, compliance and risk management,
at least annually in accordance with the requirements of the
Combined Code and the guidance set out within it. The system

of internal control is reviewed for effectiveness and adequacy.

The internal control system can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against maierial misstatement or 16ss. as it is
designed 1o manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.

The board reviews risk management and the effectiveness of

the system of internal control through the Severn Trent Plc Audit
Commitiee. The board also keeps under review ways in which
1o enhance the control and audit arrangements in the group.

The Audit Committee receives reports every six months from

the Chief Executive on the significant risks faced by the group,
an assessment of the effectiveness of controls over each of those
risks and an action plan to improve controls where this has been
assessed as necessary. Any significant control weaknesses that
have been identified as requiring remedy are also reported to the
Audit Committee. The auditors also report on significant control
issues to this committee. The Internal Audit department provides
objective assurance and advice on risk management and contral.

The board confirms that procedures providing an angoing process
for identifying, evaluating and managing the principal risks faced
by the group have been in place for the year to 31 March 2009
and up to the date of the approval of the Annual Report.



Statement of directors'
responsibilities

Key elements of the group's processes and procedures are:

clearly defined and communicated strategic and business
objectives,;

an grganisation structure with clear lines of accountability

and responsibility:

performance management and succession planning systems;
regular, structured reviews of business risk by senior
management and the Executive Committee, including a self
assessment of control effectiveness;

a scheme of delegated authority, approval of plans. budgets
and significant investments;

robust business planning including the identification and
implementation of relevant improvement plans;

monthly reporting and monitoring of financial results, regulatory
compliance and other operational performance indicators; and
independent assurance provided by both internal and

external auditors,

»

Principal risks and uncertainties
The board considers the principal risks and uncertainties affecting
the business activities of the company to be those detailed below:

external financial market factors could adversely impact on our
financial position;

compliance requirements, particularly changes in law or
regulation in the types of business in which we operate,

could have an adverse affect on our business and operations;
the results of our operations depend on a number of factors
including achieving an accepiable final determination from
Ofwat for Severn Trent Water and our ability to achieve
sustainable benefits through the Severn Trent Water

change programme;

the failure of our assets, processes or systems could affect

our ability to cary out critical operations and could have a
significant impact on the Health and Safety of our people or
customers, or on our financial position and our reputation; and
our ability to influence custormer behaviour or to operate in

an environmentally responsible way couid affect our financial
position and our reputation.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicabie law
and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the directars
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable taw).
The financial statemenis are required by law to give a true and
fair view of the siate of affairs of the company and of the group
and of the profit or toss of the company and group for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors
are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;
make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and

followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been

explained in the financial statements, and prepare the financial
statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate

to presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that

the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985,

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the

company and hence far 1aking reasonable steps for the prevention

and detection of fraud and cther irregularities,

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the company’s

website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the

preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ

from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditors’ report

to the members of Severn Trent Water Ltd

We have audited the group and company financial statements
{the financial statements) of Severn Trent Water Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2009 which comprise the group and
company profit and Joss accounts, the group and company
balance sheets, the group cash flow statement, the group and
company statermnents of total recognised gains and losses, the
group and company reconciliations of moverments in sharehoiders
funds, and the related notes 1 to 20. These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made sclely to the company’s members, as

a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies

Act 1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company’s members those matters we are required 1o
state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit wark, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice} are set out in the
statement of directors’ respensibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirerments
and ‘nternational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our apinion as 1o whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you
whether in our opinion the information given in the directors’
report is consistent with the financial statements. The information
given in the directors’ report includes that specific information
presented in the chief executive’s review and the performance
reviews that are cross referred from the business review section of
the directors’ report.

In addition we report 1o you if, in our opinion, the company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and
other ransactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as
described in the contents section, and consider whether it is
consistent with the audited financial statements. We consider the
implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial
statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any further
information outside the Annual Report.
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Basis of audit cpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate 1o the group’s and company's
circurnstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit s¢ as to obtain all the

information and explanations which we considered necessary in

order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonabte

assurance that the financial statements are free from material |
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error, in forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the preseritation of information in the financial
statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
of the state of the group's and the company's affairs as at
31 March 2009 and of the group's and company’s profii for
the year then ended;

* the financial staternents have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

* the information given in the directors’ report is consisient with

W&FI statemegts.
My k.\-ta

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Birmingham, UK

28 May 2009
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Profit and loss accounts
Year ended 31 March 2009

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Notas £m Em Em £mn
Turnover 1,3249 1,265.3 1,324.9 1.265.3
Operating costs before excepiional items 2 (840.0) (798.8) (855.8) (814.1}
Exceptional operating costs 2 (19.4) (63.3) {19.49) (63.3)
Total operating costs 2 (859.4) (862.1) (875.2) (877.4)
Other income 34 39 34 39
Operating profit 4689 4071 453.1 391.8
Income from shares in other group undertakings - - 14.8 -
Net interest payable 4 (187.3) (166.8) (186.5) {164.1) _
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2816 240.3 281.4 2217 5
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities — current tax 5 (65.2) (64.8) (62.6) (62.6) |
- deferred tax 5 (52.4) 21.5 (52.4) 21.5 !
Taxation 5 (117.6) (43.3)  (115.0) (41.1)
Profit for the financial year 15 164.0 197.0 166.4 186.6
The results arise from continuing operations in both the current and preceding year.
Statements of total recognised gains and losses
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Em £m Em Em
Profit for the financial year 164.0 1670 166.4 186.6
Actuarial loss (110.4) (38.1) (110.4) {38.1)
Tax on actuarial loss 309 10.7 309 10.7
Adjustment in respect of tax rate change on deferred tax - 0.8 - 0.8
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year 845 170.4 86.9 160.0
Reconciliations of movements in shareholders’ funds
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Notes Em £Em Em Em
Profit for the financial year 164.0 197.0 166.4 186.6
Dividends 6 (154.7) (263.1) (154.7) (263.1)
Retained profit/(loss) for the financial year 9.3 {656.1) 1.7 (76.5)
Share based payments 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.1
Net actuarial loss (79.5) (27.4) (79.5) (27.4)
Adjustment in respect of tax rate change on deferred tax - 0.8 - 08
Net reduction to shareholders’ funds {(67.2) (89.6) (64.8) (100.0)
Opening shareholders’ funds 1,243.0 13326 1,456.6 1,556.6
Closing shareholders’ funds 1,175.8  1,243.0 1.391.8 1.456.6
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Balance sheets
As at 371 March 2008

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Notes Em Em £m Em

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 7 56849 54175  5,6829 54155
Investments 8 - - 2357 2357
5,684.9 54175 5,9186 5.651.2
Current assets
Stocks 8.0 6.2 8.0 6.2
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 9a 278.7 2991 286.0 295.9
Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year Sb 2.4 2.1 328 21.3
Short term deposits 12b 1471 448.7 1471 448.7
Cash at bank and in hand 129 - "7 -
4491 756.1 485.6 77841
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 10 (593.1) (889.1) (634.1) (1,467.7)
Net current liabilities (144.0) (133.0) (148.5) (689.6)
Total assets less current liabilities 5,540.9 5,284.5 57701 4,961.6
Creditors: amounis falling due after more than one year 11 (3,705.2) (3.4678) (3.718.4) (2,931.3)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 13 {509.1) (493.4) (509.1) {493.4)
Net assets excluding pension deficit 1,326.6 13233 11,5426 1,536.9
Pension deficit 17 (150.8) {80.3) (150.8) (80.3}
Net assets including pension deficit 1.175.8 12430 1.391.8 1,456.6
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 14 10000 1,000.0  1,000.0 1,000.0
Profit and loss account 15 175.8 243.0 391.8 456.6
Shareholders’ funds 1,175.8 1,243.0 1,391.8 1,456.6

Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 28 May 2009.

= /‘* D»QMO»Q&\

Sir tohn Egan Michael McKeon
Chairman Finance Director
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Group cash flow statement

Year ended 31 March 2009

2009 2009 2008 2008
Notes Em £m Em £Em
Net cash inflow from operating activities 19a 767.9 676.3
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 12.5 8.8
Interest paid {(151.7) {128.0)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments (16.2) (20.6)
(161.4) {(139.8)
Taxation {57.8) (52.7)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (624.2) (591.0)
Granis and contributions received 294 44.2
Sale of tangib!e fixed assets 6.0 2.9
(588.8) {(543.9)
Equity dividends paid (154.7) {263.1)
Net cash outflow before management of liquid resources and financing (194.8) (323.2)
Management of liquid resources 301.6 (446.8)
Net cash flow before financing 106.8 (770.0)
Financing
Finance leases repaid (41.1) (23.1)
Loans received 4105 1,124.3
Loans repaid (78.8) (102.5)
Share based payments made on LTIP awards vesting in the period (1.7) -
288.9 998.7
Net increase in cash 395.7 228.7
Reconciliation of net cash flow te movement in net debt
2009 2009 2008 2008
Notes Em £m £Em Em
Net increase in cash as above 3828 228.7
Cash flow from movement in net debt (290.5) {998.7)
Cash flow from movement in liquid resources (288.7) 446.8
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows (196.5) 323.2)
Rolted up interest on debt {20.0) (37.0)
Increase in net debt (216.5) (360.2)
Opening net debt (3.480.1) (3.119.9)
Closing net debt 19 (3.696.6) (3.480.1}

Severn Trerd Water Annual Report and Accounts 2009 25




Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2009

1 Accounting policies

a) Accounting convention

The financial statemenis have been prepared on the gaing
concern basis under the historical cost convention in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and,
except for the treatment of certain grants and contributions,
comply with the requirements of the United Kingdom Companies
Act 1985 (the Act). An explanation of this departure frem the
requirements of the Act is given in the policy on grants and
contributions below.

b) Consolidation

The consolidated profit and loss account and balance sheet
include the results of the company and its subsidiary undertakings
listed in note 8 prepared for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Intra group sales and profits are eliminated fully on consolidation.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in
FRS 1 "Cash Flow Statements” and has not presented a cash
flow statement.

¢}  Turnover

Turnover represents income receivable from regulated water
activities, excluding value added tax and trade discouns, in the
ordinary course of business for services provided within the
United Kingdom.

Income includes an estimation of the amount of mains water and
waste water charges unbilled at the year end. The accrual is
estimated using a defined methadology based upon a measure of
unbilled water consumed by tariff, which is calculated from
historical billing information.

Turnover is not recognised in respect of unoccupied properties.
Properties are classified as unoccupied when:

* The company is informed that a customer has left a property
and it is not expected to be reoccupled immediately;

* New properties are connected but are nat occupied; or
= Properties are disconnected following a customer's request.

Where properties are not classified as unoccupied but the identity
of the customer is unknown, the properties are classified as

"The QOccupier’ premises. Income is only recognised for such
premises when:

* Cash is received; or
* The identity of the occupier becomes known.

Where amounts invoiced are being recovered through charges on
income, turnover is recognised in accordance with the policy set
out above and provisions are charged to operating costs to reflect
the company's assessment of the risk of non recoverability.

d) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets comprise:

i) Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systems being: mains
and sewers; impounding and pumped raw water storage
reservoirs; dams; and sludge pipelines.

Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating Lo increases in
capacity or enhancements of the network and on maintaining the
operating capability of the network in accordance with the defined
standards of service is treated as an addition and included at cost
after deducting grants and contributions (see note 1f).
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The depreciation charged for infrastructure assets is the
estimated, anticipated level of annual expenditure required to
maintain the operating capability of the network less the
estimated, anticipated level of relevant annual grants and
coniributions, based on the company’s independently certified
asset management plan (see note 1f).

i) Other assets

Other assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Additions are included at cost.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Other assets are depreciated on
a straight line basis over their estimated economic lives, which are
principally as follows:

Years
Buildings 30 - 60
Operational struciwres 40 - 80
Fixed plant 20 - 40
Vehicles, mabile plant and computers 2-15

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until
commissioned.

e) Leased assets

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements which
transfer subsiantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset o the lessee (finance leases), the assets are accounted for
as if they had been purchased and the fair value of the minimum
lease payments is shown as an obligation to the lessor. Lease
payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and a
finance charge, the capital element reducing the obligation to the
lessor and the finance charge being written off to the profit and
loss account over the period of the lease in proportion to the
capital amount gutstanding. Depreciation is charged over the
shorter of the estimated usefu! life and the lease period.

All other leases are accounted for as operating leases. Rental
costs arising under operating leases are charged to the profit
and loss account on a straight line basis over the life of the jease.

f}  Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions received in respect of non infrastructure
assets are treated as deferred income and are recognised in

the profit and loss account over the useful economic life of

those assets.

In accordance with industry practice, grants and contributions
retating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the
cost of fixed assets. This is not in accordance with Schedule 4

to the Act, which requires assets to be shown at their purchase
price or production cost and hence grants and contributions

10 be presented as deferred income. This departure from

the requirements of the Act is, in the apinion of the directors,
necessary to give a true and fair view as, while a provision is
made for depreciation of infrastructure assets, finite lives have
not been determined for these assets, and therefore no basis
exists on which to recognise grants and contributions as deferred
income. The effect of this departure is that the cost of fixed assets
is £550.3 million lower than it would otherwise have been
(2008: £522.4 million).

Those grants and contributions relating te the maintenance of
the operating capability of the infrastructure network are taken
into account in determining the depreciation charged for
infrastructure assets.




Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies continued

g} Impairment of goodwill and fixed assets

Impairments of goodwill and fixed assets are calculated as the
difference between the carrying value of the net assets of income
generating units, including where appropriate investments and
goodwill, and their recoverable amounts. Recoverable amount is
defined as the higher of net realisabte value or estimated value in
use at the date the impairment review is undertaken.

Net realisable vafue represents the net amount that can be
generated through sale of assets. Value in use represents the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted on a
pre-tax basis, using the estimated cost of capita! of the income
generating unit.

Impairment reviews are carried out if there is some indication that
an impairment may have occurred, or, where otherwise required,
to ensure that goodwill and fixed assets are not carried above
their estimated recoverable amounts.

Impairments are recognised in the profit and loss account and,
where material, are disclosed as excepticnal,

h) Investments

Investrments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less armounts
written off,

i) Stocks

Stocks are stated at cost less any provision necessary to account
for any damage and obsolescence.

j} Insurance

Provision is made for claims notified and for claims incurred but
which have not yet been notified, based on advice from the
group’s external insurance advisers.

k) Pension costs

The group and company operate both defined benefit and defined
contribution schemes.

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged o operating
profit are the current service costs and gains and losses on
settlements and curtailments, They are included as part of staff
costs. Past service costs are recognised immediately in the profit
and loss account if the benefits have vested. if the benefits have
not vesied immediately the costs are recognised over the period
until vesting occurs. The interest costs and the expected return on
assets is shown as a net amount of other finance costs or credits
adjacent 1o interest. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immaediately in the statement of total recognised gains and losses.

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the
scheme held separately from those of the group, in separate
trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured
at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate
bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities.
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are
updated at each balance sheet date. The resuliing defined benefit
asset or liability, net of the related deferred tax, is presenied
separately after other net assets on the face of the balance sheet.

Costs of defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the
profit and loss accaunt in the period in which they fall due.

1) Research and development

Expenditure on tangible fixed assets relating to research and
development projects is capitalised and written off over the
expected useful life of those assets.

Other reseaich and development expenditure is charged to
the profit and loss account in the year in which it is incurred.

m) Current and deferred taxation

Current taxation is provided at amourts expected to be paid
(or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxation is provided in respect of timing differences
between the treatment of certain items for taxation and
accounting purposes only to the extent thai the group has an
obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less
tax in the future. Material deferred taxation balances arising are
discounted by applying an appropriate risk free discount rate.
For the purposes of discounting, the pericd over which accelerated
capital atlowances in respect of infraswructure assets reverse is
determined by the estimated annual cost of maintaining the
operating capability of the network, based on an allocation

of the infrastructure renewals charge to existing and fuiure
infrastructure asseis.

n)  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase
consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 April 1998 remains
eliminated against reserves.

o) Derivatives and other financial instruments

Debt instruments

The costs of debt instruments are charged to the profit and loss
account over the term of the debt at a canstant rate on the
carrying amount.

Such costs include the cost of issue and any discount 1o face
value arising on issue, or any premiurm arising on maturity.

Derivative financial instruments

Financial instruments, in particular, interest rate swaps and to

a lesser extent currency swaps, are used to manage the financial
risks arising from the business activities of the group and the
financing of those activities, There is no trading activity in
financial instruments. Financial instruments are accounted for
as follows:

Interest rate swaps are used o hedge the group's exposure to
movements in interest raies, The interest payable or receivable
on such swaps is accrued in the same way as interest arising on
deposits or berrowings. Interest rate swaps are not revalued to
fair value.

Currency swaps are used 10 hedge the group’s exposure (o
rmovements in foreign exchange rates. The interest payable or
receivable on such swaps is accrued in the same way as interest
arising en deposits or borrawings. Currency swaps are not
revalued to fair value but are recognised in the balance sheet at
the difference between the swap rate and ihe spot rate at the
balance sheet date,
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies continued

Derivatives and other financial instruments continued

The aggregate fair value at the balance sheet date of the hedging
instruments described above are disclosed in note 12 1o the
financial statements.

p) Pre-contract costs
Pre-contract costs incurred are written off as an expense, untif
such time as award of the contract becemes virtually certain.

Deferred costs are amortised over the life of the contract.

q) Share based payments

The group operates a number of equity settled, share based
compensation plans for employees ultilising the shares of the

ultimate parent company. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant is recognised as an expense
over the vesting period of the grant.

The fair value of employee services is determined by reference

10 the fair value of the awards granted calculated using an
appropriate pricing model. excluding the impact of any non
market vesting conditions. The number of awards that are
expected to vest takes into account nen market vesting conditions
including, where appropriate, continuing empioyment by the
group. The charge is adjusted o reflect shares that do not vest

as a result of failing to meet a non market condition.

2 Analysis of total operating costs and exceptional items

Graup Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Em £m £m Em
Analysis of total operating costs
Raw materials and consumables (including exceptional costs
£0.3 million {(2008: £6.4 million)) 40.2 4.2 40.2 412
Staff costs (including exceptional costs £0.9 million (2008: £8.0 million)) 212.8 207.8 212.8 207.8
Depreciation and other amounts written off tangible assets 338.0 3224 338.0 3224
Other operating costs 343.8 365.1 359.6 380.4
Own work capitalised (75.49) {(14.4) {715.4) {74.4)
Total operating costs 859.4 862.1 875.2 8774
Staff costs comprise:
Wages and salaries 172.4 165.2 172.4 165.2
Social security costs 14.6 12.4 14.6 12.4
Pension costs {note 17) 25.8 30.2 25.8 30.2
Total staff costs 212.8 207.8 212.8 207.8
Depreciation and other amounts written off tangible assets comprise:
Depreciation on owned assets: non infrastructure 197.4 182.0 197.4 182.0
Depreciation on owned assets: infrastructure 118.5 1179 118.5 117.9
Depreciation on assets held under finance leases 22.1 225 22.1 22.5
338.0 3224 338.0 3224
Other operating costs comprise:
Power (including exceptional costs £nil million {2008: £0.2 million)) 51.1 376 81. 376
Rates 58.4 59.5 58.4 59.5
Service charges 30.0 286 30.0 28.6
Other operating costs {including exceptional costs
£16.1 miltion (2008: £45.6 mitlion)} 73.4 113.9 92.7 113.9
Deferred income rejeased (3.3) (2.8} (3.3) {2.8)
Hired and contracted services (including exceptional costs
£2.1 million {2008: £1.9 miliior)) 123.7 116.5 104.2 116.5
Hire of plant and machinery {including exceptional costs
£nit mittion (2008: £1.2 million)} 6.8 71 6.8 71
Other operating leases 26 2.2 18.6 17.5
Research and develepment expenditure 5.1 41 5.1 4.1
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (4.0 (1.6} 4.0 (0.6)
Total other operating costs 343.8 365.1 359.6 380.4
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Notes to the financial statements

2 Analysis of total operating costs and exceptional items continued

Exceptional items

2009 2008

£m Em

Exceptional restructuring costs and termination of operations (13.7} {13.9)
Exceptional flood costs net of insurance recoveries 1.5 (13.8)
Exceptional fines and penalties (7.2) {35.8)

(19.4) 63.3)

A £13.7 million exceptional charge was incurred (2008: £13.9 million) arising from the programme to restructure and realign
the business.

An exceptional credit of £1.5 million (2008: charge of £13.6 million) arose from the flooding incidents that affected the water and
sewerage networks during the summer of 2007, This includes costs of £13.1 million less insurance recoveries of £14.6 million.

A charge of £7.2 million was incurred relating to the settlement of the regulatory issues that arose in previous years. This includes a
court imposed fine of £2.0 million and costs of £0.2 million from offences relating to feakage data supplied to Ofwat in 2001 and 2002
and a charge of £5.0 million for additional contributions to the Severn Trent Charitable Trust as agreed with Ofwat.

An exceptional charge of £35.8 million arose in 2008 from Ofwat’'s propoesal to fine the company in relation to the misreporting of
customer service data and failing to meet Guaranteed Standards of Service.

Auditors’ remuneration
During the year Deloitte LLP earned the following fees:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Em Em Em Em

Fees payable to the company's auditors for the audit of the

company’s annual accounts 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.2
Fees payable ta the company's auditors and their associates for

other services to the group:

The audit of the company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.2 0.1 - 01
Total audit fees 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3
GCther services pursuant to legislation:

Other services - 0.1 - 0.1
Total non audit fees - 0.1 - 0.1

Fees in respect of other services in 2008 related 10 a review of internal controls.

3 Information regarding directors and employees

Directors:

a) Directors’ interests

All of the direciors as at the end of the year are also directors of Severn Trent Plc, the ultimate parent undertaking, and their interests in
the share capital of that company are disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts of that company for the year ended 31 March 2009,
Share options were granted and exercised in accordance with the Severn Trent Share Option Scheme and the Severn Trent Sharesave
Scheme as appropriate.

The executive directors have further interests in Severn Trent Plc ordinary shares of 97"hsp each by virtue of having received contingent
awards of shares under the Severn Trent Plc Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP} en 19 June 20086, 18 July 2007 and 14 July 2008.

The LTIP operates on a three year rolling basis. The Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust is operated in conjunction with

the LTIP. Awards do not vest until they have been held in trust for three years and specific performance criteria have been satisfied.
The performance criteria for the awards are based on Severn Trent Pic’s Total Shareholder Return (TSR).

The individual interests, which represent the maximum aggregate number of shares to which each individual could become entitled,
are disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2008,
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Notes to the financial statements

3 Information regarding directors and employees continued
b) Emoluments

2009 2008
£000 E000
Aggregate emoluments (excluding pension contributions) '3,426.5 2,267.4

i} Non cash benefits included in aggregate emoluments consist mainly of the provision of cars and health care insurance.

i) No emoluments were paid by the company tg certain of the directors in respect of their services to the company. Their emolumertts
are paid by other companies within the Severn Trent group.

iii) Retirement benefits are accruing to three directors (2008: three directors) under a defined benefit scheme.

c) Highest paid director

2009 2008
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments (excluding pension contributions) 921.3 620.5

The highest paid director in 2008 is the same as that in 2008.

The accrued pension at 31 Mareh 2009 for the highest paid director was £15,949 (2008: £11,538). The pension entittement is that
which would be paid annually an retirement based on service to the end of the year. The highest paid director did not exercise any
share options during the year. LTIP awards over 8,974 shares vested in respect of the highest paid director during the year.

d) Employees
Group and company

2009 2008
Rumber Number
Average number of employees during the year 5,624 5.578

4 Net interest payable

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m Em

Interest receivable and similar income 14.1 8.8 14.6 1.6

Finance income on defined benefit pension schemes 79.8 83.0 79.8 83.0

Interest receivable 939 91.8 94.4 94.6
Interest payable and similar charges on:

Bank loans and overdrafts 4.7 (13.4) 4.7 (13.4)

Other loans (178.7) {153.0) (38.2) {43.7)

Finance leases (16.1) (20.6) (16.1) (20.5)

Amounts due to subsidiary undertaking - - (140.2) {109.5)

Interest cost on defined benefit pension schemes {(81.7) (71.6) 81.7) (71.6)

Interest payable (281.2) (258.6) (280.9) (258.7)

(187.3) (186.8) (186.5) (164.1)
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Notes to the financial statements

5 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
a) Analysis of charge in the year

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m Em Em Em
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 28% (2008; 30%)
Current year 318 34.5 28.3 309
Adjustment in respect of prior years (14.2) (8.9} (14.2) (8.1}
Graup relief payable at 28% (2008: 30%)
Current year 42.3 38.2 43.2 39.6
Adjustment in respect of prior years 5.3 0.2 5.3 0.2 1
Total current tax 65.2 64.8 62.6 62.6 |
Deferred tax |
Origination and reversal of timing differences
Current year {(23.8) (4.3) 23.8) (4.3}
Adjustment in respect of prior year 8.4 (92.8) 8.4 (92.8)
Decrease in discount 40.4 64.1 ‘40.4 64.1
Total deferred tax charge/(credit) 25.0 (33.0) 25.0 (33.00
Deferred tax included in staterment of recognised gains and losses 274 11.5 27.4 11.5
Deferred tax charge/(credit) included in profit and loss account 524 (21.5) 524 (21.5)
1176 43.3 115.0 41,1

Totat tax charge

b) Factors affecting the tax charge in the year

The current tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom (28%). !

The differences are explained below:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm Em Em
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2816 240.3 281.4 227.7
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate
of corporation tax of 28% {2008; 30%) 788 72.1 78.8 68.3
Effects of:
ltems not taxable or not deductible for tax purposes (1.8) (1.8) 4.4) (0.2
Capital allowances for period in excess of depreciation (3.2) (1.8) 3.2 {(1.8)
Utilisation offmovement in short term timing difference 0.3 4.2 0.3 4.2
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior periods 8.9 {7.9) (8.9) (7.9)
65.2 64.8 62.6 62.6

Of the current year charge, £1.9 million {2008: £5.5 million) refates to current tax credits on exceptional items and £2.9 mitlion credit

(2008: £1.6 million credit) in respect of deferred tax.
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5 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities continued

¢) Tax charged directly to equity
In addition to the amount charged to the profit and loss account the fotlowing amounts have been credited directly to equity:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m Em £m fm

Current tax relief on pension contributions in excess
of amounts charged to the profit and loss account (3.5} - (3.5) -
Deferred tax on actuarial gains and losses (27.9) (11.5) (27.4) (11.5)
Tax credited directly to equity (30.9) {11.5) (30.9) (11.5)

d) Factors affecting future tax rates
The group’s current tax charge of £74.1 million (2008: £72.7 million) before adjustments to the tax charge in respect of priar periods
represents 26.3% (2008: 30.3%) of the group’s profit before tax.

The company’s current tax charge of £71.5 million (2008: £70.5 million) before adjustments to the tax charge in respect of prior
periods represents 25.4% {2008: 30.9%) of the company's profit before tax.

The group and the company’s tax charge will continue to be affected in future years by the requirements of AMP4 which will impact
both depreciation ?nd capital atlowances.

In 2008 the deferred tax adjustment in respect of prior years included an amount to reflect the decrease in the main corporation tax
rate to 28% with effect from 1 Aprit 2008, being the rate at which deferred tax will reverse and an adjustment of £28.7 million to
remove the element of deferred tax which related to industrial buildings.

The group and company’s deferred tax charge in future years is difficult to predict as it is impacted by changes to interest rates from one
bafance sheet date to the next.

6 Dividends

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m Em £m £m

Dividends paid 154.7 263.1 154.7 263.1

The company’s dividend policy is to declare dividends which are consistent with the company’s regulatory obligations and at a level
which is decided each year after consideration of a number of factors, including regulatory uncertainty, market expectations, actual and
potential efficiencies, future cash flow requirements and bafance sheet considerations.

The amount declared is expected to vary each year as the impact of these factors changes. The ordinary dividend declared and paid by
the company in 2008/09 amounted o £154.7 million, being 15.47p per share (2008: 26.31p per share).
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9 Debtors
a) Amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Em Em Em £fm
Trade debtors 1201 129.6 120.1 129.6
Amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 2.3 2.5 6.9 4.5
Cther debtors 129 17.3 12.9 15.4
Prepayments and accrued income 143.4 149.7 146.1 146.4
2187 299.1 286.0 2959
b} Amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £Em £m £m
Trade debtors - 0.1 - 0.1
Other debtors - 0.1 - 0.1
Amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings - - 30.4 271
Prepayments and accrued income 24 1.9 24 -
24 2.1 32.8 27.3
Total debtors 2811 301.2 318.8 323.2
10 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Em Em Em fm
Bank overdrafts 0.2 383.0 - 419.9
Bank loans 100.0 78.6 100.0 78.6
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 15.0 - - -
Other loans 317 - - -
Obligations under finance leases 43.4 396 43.4 396
Borrowings (note 12) 190.3 501.2 143.4 5381
Trade creditors 20.2 157 20.2 15.7
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 32.0 28.4 1574 38.9
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - - 532.7
Other creditors 2.4 10.7 1.2 8.9
Taxation and social security 4.4 4.8 4.4 48
Corporation tax payabte 457 42.8 42.8 43.9
Accruals and deferred income 298.1 285.5 259.0 284.7
593.1 889.1 634.1 1.467.7
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11 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

Em £m Em Em

Bank loans 4478 541.9 447.8 541.9
Loans due to subsidiary underiakings - - 2918.0 2.003.8
Other loans 2,918.0 25403 - -
Obkigations under finance leases 300.5 345.4 300.5 345.4
Borrowings (note 12} 3,666.3 3.4276  3,666.3 2,891.1
Deferred income 344 36.1 34.4 36.1
Other creditors 4.5 4.1 172.7 4.1
3,705.2 3,4678 3.7118.4 2,931.3

12 Financial instruments

The group's palicy in respect of interest rate risk management and the related use of financial instruments are set out in the accounting

policy note 1o on page 27.
a) Borrowings analysed by maturity date

Group
Loans
with other
repayment Finance
Overdrafts terms leases 2009 2008
Em fm £m £m fm
Financial liabilities due within one year (note 10) 0.2 146.7 43.4 190.3 501.2
Between one and two years - - 46.9 46.9 175.3
Between two and five years - 191.8 476 239.4 122.2
After more than five years - 31740 206.0 3,3800 3,13041
Total financial liabilities after one year - 3.3658 3005  3,666.3 34276
0.2 35125 3439 3,856.6 3.928.8
£548.0 million (2008: £542.0 miilion} of funding instruments contain certain financial convenants, breach of which can trigger
early repayment.
Loans repayable partly or wholly after five years comprise:
Group
Rate of
interest 2009 2008
% Em Em
European Investment Bank loans - 2016-17 (2008: 2013-17) 1.8-2.8 300.0 4419
Eurocpean medium term loan notes - 2014-67 (2008: 2014-67) 1.4-6.6 1,763.7 1,750.0
Sterling bonds - 2018-29 (2008: 2024-29) 6.0-6.3 1,110.3 710.4
3.174.0 2,902.3
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7 Tangible fixed assets

Group
Land and Infrastructue Plantand  Vehicles and
buildings assels equipment mobile plant Total
£m tm £m £m tm
Cost
At 1 April 2008 2.174.5 3.813.2 2,9341 47,6 8.969.4
Additions 1456 195.1 286.0 86 635.3
Grants and contributions - {279) - - (27.9)
Assets sold or written off {5.5) - (59.5) (8.9 (73.9)
At 31 March 2009 2,314.6 3,980.4 3,160.6 47.3 9,502.9
Depreciation
At 1 April 2008 6736 1,369.2 1,485.8 23.3 35519
Charge for year 477 118.5 165.8 6.0 338.0
Assets sold or wriiten off (5.5) - (59.5) {6.9) (71.9)
At 31 March 2009 7158 1,487.7 1,5921 22.4 3,818.0
Net book value
At 31 March 2009 1,598.8 2,4927 1,568.5 24.9 5,684.9
At 31 March 2008 1,500.5 2.444.0 1,448.3 24.3 5.4175
Company
Land and  Infrastructure Plant and  Vehicles and
buildings assets equipment mobile plant Total
Em Em Em Em £m
Cost
At ¥ April 2008 21745 3.810.9 29342 47.6 8,967.2
Additions 145.6 195.1 286.0 8.6 635.3
Grants and contributions - (27.9) - - (27.9)
Assets sold or wiitten off {5.5) - (59.5) (8.9} {73.9)
At 31 March 2009 2,3146 3,9781 3.160.7 47.3 9,500.7
Depreciation
AU T April 2008 6736 1.369.0 1,485.8 23.3 3.551.7
Charge for year 417 118.5 165.8 6.0 3380
Assets sold or written off {5.5) - {(59.5) (6.9) (71.9)
At 31 March 2009 715.8 1,485 1,592.1 22.4 3,817.8
Net book value
At 31 March 2009 1,598.8 2,4906 1,568.6 24.9 5,682.9
At 31 March 2008 1,500.9 2.4419 1,448.4 24.3 5415.5
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7 Tangible fixed assets continued
i Included in tangible fixed assets are assets held under finance leases as follows:

Group Cornpany

2009 2008 2009 2008

Em £m Em £m

Cost 411.7 416.4 409.3 414.0
Accumulated depreciation (143.9) {126.6) (143.8) (126.3}

Net book value 267.8 289.8 265.7 2877

i) Grants and contributions received relating o infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of fixed assets in order o show
a true and fair view as set out in note 1f.
iii} The net book value of land and buildings is analysed as follows:

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

Em Em £m Em

Freehold 1,598.5 1,500.6 1,598.5 1,500.6
Short leasehold 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

1,598.8 1.500.9 1,598.8 1,500.9

iv) Included below are the following tangible fixed assets not subject to depreciation:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Em Em Em Em
Land 23.7 226 23.7 22.6
Assets in the course of construction 571.7 4252 571.7 425.2
595.4 4478 595.4 4478
8 Investments
Group
Other
investments Tatal
Em Em
Cost and net book value at 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2009 - -
Company
Shares in Leans to
subsidiary subsidiary Other
undertakings  undertakings investments Total
Em £m fm Em
Cost and net book value at 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2009 170.1 65.5 0.1 235.7
Country of Percentage and
registration class of share
and operalion capital held Nature of business
Subsidiary undertakings (all directly held)
Biogas Generation Limited England and Wales 100% ordinary Power generation
East Worcester Water Limited England and Wales 100% ordinary Water undertaking
and 100% non voting ordinary
Severn Trent Power Generation Limited England and Wales 100% ordinary Power generation
Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited England and Wales 100% ordinary Finance company
Severn Trent Utilities Finance Plc England and Wales 100% ordinary Finance company

In the apinion of the directors the fair values of the group’s and company’s investments are not lgss than the amount at which they are
stated in the balance sheet.
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12 Financial instruments continued
b} Investment in interest earning assets

Group

2009 2008

Em £m

Cash at bank and in hand 12.9 -
Sterling deposits 1471 448.7
160.0 4487

Sterling deposits include £1.8 million {(2008: £1.8 million) held on short term deposit with a maturity date of less than one year as

security for self insurance obligations.

Sterling deposits receive interest based on LIBID.

¢) Borrowings analysed by interest rate after taking account of various interest rate swaps entered into by the group

and company

Group
Fixed Floating Index
interest interest linked
rate rate rate Tatal
tm Em Em Em
Maturity profile:
Less than one year 1233 66.8 - 190.1
Between one and two years 115 35.4 - 46.9
Between two and five years 451 46.5 147.8 239.4
Between five and twenty years 1.526.5 505.7 158.4 2,190.6
In more than twenty years 416.3 38.6 734.5 1189.4
Total borrowings excluding overdrafts 2,122.7 693.0 1.040.7 3,856.4
Overdrafts - 0.2 - 0.2
Total borrowings including overdrafts 21227 693.2 1,040.7 3,856.6
Impact of interest rate swaps entered into by the group and company 420.7 (420.7} - -
Total borrowings after the impact of interest rate swaps 2,543 4 2725 1,040.7  3,856.6
Short term deposits and cash at bank and in hand (160.0) - - {160.0)
Net debt as at 31 March 2009 2,383.4 272.5 1,040.7 3,696.6
Total borrowings after the impact of inierest rate swaps as at 2,094.8 813.3 1,020.7 3.928.8
31 March 2008
Short term deposits and cash at bank and in hand - (448.7) - (448.7)
Net debt at 31 March 2008 2,0948 3646 1020.7 3480.1

Fixed interest debt incurs interest at a weighted average rate of 5.9% (2008: 5.8%). Interest on these borrowings is fixed for a weighted

average period of 12.7 years (2008: 16.9 years).

Included in the fixed interest debt above, the group has entered into a number of forward start aceruing interest rate swaps. These have
a notional value of £31.7 million and accrete notional value up to 2032. The maximum notional value of these swaps is £135 million
(2008: £135 million}. These swaps are floating to fixed and bear fixed interest at between 5.25% and 5.52%.

The group has two forward daied swaps (floating to fixed) with a total notional value of £106 million (2008: £138 million) that bear
interest at 4.61% and 4.87%. These interest rate swaps commenced on 6 May 2009 and terminate in 2010.

Floating rate borrowings bear interest based on LIBOR.

The principal outstanding under index finked debt is adjusted by the change in the Retail Prices Index at regular intervais. Interest

is charged at fixed rates on the adjusied amount.
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12 Financial instruments continued

d) Fair value of financial instruments

The group uses financial derivatives solely for the purposes of managing the interest rate and currency risks associated with financing
business activities. The group’s policy for the management of interest rate risk is to have a balanced portfolio of debt with a mix of term
and interest rate structures that diversifies its risk and is appropriate to the long life of its asset base. The details are periodically
reviewed 10 respond to changing market conditions and to have regard to regulatory pronouncements. At 31 March 2009 interest rates
on 65.9% of the group’s borrowings were fixed for periods up o 26 years.

The group’s business does not involve significant exposure to foreign exchange transactions. Cross currency swaps are employed to
exchange foreign currency borrowings for sterling.

Group

2009 2008
Financial instrument by category: Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
Asset/{liability) Em Em £Em Em
Primary financial instruments held
or issued to finance business activities
Short term deposits 1471 147.1 4487 448.7
Cash at bank and in hand 12.9 12.9 - -
Short term debtors and creditors 70.2 70.2 88.8 88.8
Borrowings falling due within one year (190.3) (231.6) {500.9) {465.0)
Borrowings falling due after more than one year (3,666.3) (4,616.1) (3,475.8) (3,277.5)
Derivative financial instruments held to manage
the currency and interest rate profile
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments - (101.5) - {42.9)
Currency instruments — cross currency swaps 205.9 1971 47.9 40.2
Total net financial liabilities (3.420.5) (4,521.9) (3.391.3) (3,207.7)

Other long term assets
Other fixed asset investments 0.1 0.3 - -

Where available, market rates have been used to determine fair values. When market prices are not avatlable, fair values have been
calculated by discounting cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

e} Borrowing facilities
The group and company had the fatlowing undrawn committed facilities available at 31 March 2009:

Group and company

2009 2008

Em £m

Expiring within one year - -
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years - a7
Expiring after two years but less than five years 500.0 458.3

500.0 500.0

These facilities are held jointly by with Severn Trent Plc.
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12 Financial instruments continued
N Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at 31 March 2009

Gains or losses on derivative instruments are not recognised until the exposure that is being hedged is ftself recognised. Unrecognised
gains or losses on hedges at the balance sheet date are summarised in the table below. These gains or losses represent the expected
future benefit or cost of interest rate and foreign currency hedges to the group and company at 31 March 2009 given prevailing

economic conditions.

Group
Total net
Gains Losses  gainsf{losses)
Em Em Em
Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges 1 April 2008 4.5 (55.2) (50.7
Arising in previous years that were recognised in the year - 24.7 247
Arising before 1 April 2008 that were not recognised in the financial year 4.5 (30.5) (26.0}
Unrecognised gains and losses arising during the financial year 18.7 {103.0) (84.3)
Unrecognised gains and losses at 31 March 2009 23.2 (133.5) (110.3)
Expected to be recognised
In one year or less - (4.8) 4.8)
In later years 23.2 (128.7) (105.5)
13 Provisions
Provisions for liabilities and charges comprise:
Group
Charged/!
Balance (credited) to Balance at
at 1 April profit and 31 March
2008  loss account Utilised 2009
tm Em Em £m
Restructuring 28 0.4 (2.7} 0.5
Insurance 11 0.1} {Q.1} 0.9
Dilapidation and cnerous leasehold properties 28 1.8 0.2} 4.4
Fines and penalties 358 2.2 (38.0) -
Deferred tax 4509 52.4 - 503.3
4534 58.7 (41.0) 509.1
Company
Charged/
Balance  (credited) to Balance at
a1 Aprit peedit and 31 March
2008  Joss account Litilised 2009
£m im £m £m
Restructuring 28 0.4 (2.7} 0.5
Insurance 11 (0.1} 0.1} 09
Dilapidation and onerous leasehold properties 28 1.8 0.2} 4.4
Fines and penalties 35.8 2.2 (38.0) -
Deferred tax 4509 52.4 - 503.3
4934 56.7 141.0) 509.1
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13 Provisions continued

The restructuring provision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of committed programmes. All of the associated outflows are
expected to occur within one year (2008: one year) of the balance sheet date.

Provision is made for insurance claims notified and for claims incurred but which have not yet been notified. The associated outflows
are expected to arise over a period of up to four years (2008: up to four years) from the balance sheet date.

Provision is made for dilapidation costs and leasehold property costs. The associated outflows are expected to arise over a period of up
to nine years from the balance sheet date.

On B April 2008, Ofwat published its propaosals to fine the company £35.8 million for misreporting customer service data and failure to
meet Guaranteed Standard of Service in 2005/06. This amount was paid in the year ended 31 March 2008.

Deferred tax
The full deferred tax liability, calculated at a tax rate of 28% (2008: 28%) is:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
fm Em Em £m
Capital allowances 820.3 809.0 820.3 809.0
Other timing differences (11.4) (12.1) (1.4 {(12.1)
Deferred tax asset relating to pension liability (58.7) (31.2) (58.7) {31.2)
Undiscounted provision for deferred tax 750.2 765.7 750.2 765.7
Discount (305.6) (346.0) (305.6) (346.0)
Discounted provision for deferred tax 444.6 419.7 444.6 419.7
Adjustment for deferred tax asset relating o pension liability
(included in note 17} 58.7 3.2 58.7 n.2
Deferred tax as disclosed in provisions 503.3 4509 503.3 450.9
Provision at start of year 450.9 484.4 450.9 484.4
Deferred tax charge included in profit and loss account 52.4 {21.5) 52.4 (21.5)
Deferred tax charge included in statement of recognised gains and losses (27.4) {11.5) (27.4) (11.5)
Adjustment for deferred tax relating to pension liability
(included in note 17}
Included in profit and loss account charge - {12.0) - (12.0)
Included in statement of recognised gains and lasses charge 27.4 11.5 27.4 11.5
Provision at end of year 503.3 4509 503.3 450.9
14 Share capital
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m Em Em Em
Authorised
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of £ each (2008: 1,000,0600,000) 1,000.0 1,0000 1,0000 1.000.0
Issued and fully paid
1,0C0,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each (2008: 1,000,000.000) 1,0000 1.0000 1,000.0 1.000.¢
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15 Profit and loss account
Group Company

£m Em
At 1 April 2008 2430 456.6
Profit for the financial year 164.0 166.4
Share based payments 3.0 3.0
Actuarial loss {(110.4) (110.4)
Tax on actuarial loss 30.9 30.9
Dividends paid (154.7) (154.7)
At 31 March 2009 175.8 391.8

At 31 March 2009 cumulative goodwill written off against group reserves amounted o £29.2 million (2008: £29.2 miltion).

16 Commitments and contingent liabilities

a) Investment expenditure commitments
Group and company

2009 2008
£m Em
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 182.3 261.5

In addition to these commitments, the group and company have longer term expenditure plans which include investments to achieve
improvarments in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services and to provide for growth in demand for water and
sewerage services.

b) Operating lease commitments
The group is committed to making the following payments during the next year in respect of operating feases which expire as follows:

2009 2008

Land and Land and
buiidings Other buildings Other
Em Em £m Em
Within one year 0.2 0.6 0.2 0.1
Between one and five years 07 - 01 0.5
After five years 1.4 - 1.5 -
23 0.6 1.8 0.6

The company is committed ta making the following payments during the next year in respect of operating leases which expire
as follows:

2009 2008

Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other
£m £m Em fm
Within one year 0.2 0.6 0.2 01
Between one and five years 07 - 01 0.5
After five years 17.4 - 17.3 -
183 06 17.6 0.6
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16 Commitments and contingent liabitities continued

c) Banking arrangements
The banking arrangements for both the group and company operate on a pooled basis with certain other group undertakings.

Under these arrangements participating companies guarantee each others’ overdrawn balances to the extent of their credit balances,
Credit balances can be offset against overdrawn balances of participating companies. The contingent liability as at 31 March 2009
is £nil mitlion (2008: £nil million).

17 Pensions

The group and company participates in the Severn Trent Water Pension Scheme (STPS} and the Severn Trent Mirror Image Scheme
(STMIS) {together 'the Schemes"), both af which are defined benefit schemes and are funded to cover future salary and pension
increases. The assets of the schemes are held in a separate fund administered by trustees.

As from 1 April 2004, the STPS was amended with new defined benefit and defined contribution sections introduced.
The UK defined benefit schemes and the date of their tast formal actuarial valuation are as follows:

UK defined benefit scheme Date of last formal actuarial valuation
Severn Trent Pension Scheme* 31 March 20067
Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2006

" The STPS is by far the largest of the group's UK defined benefit schemes. The Severn Trent Senior Staff Pension Scheme was merged with the STPS on 31 March 2009.

Fotlowing the valuation of the STPS, the employers’ contribution rates were increased to 33.24%, 27.70% or 16.62% of pensionable pay
until 1 July 2008 when rates were set at 22.4%. STPS members’ contributions continue at a rate of 6%, 5% or 3% of pensicnable pay.

The Schemes are closed to new entrants and hence the current service costs are expected to increase as members in the Schemes
appreach retirement.

The actuarial liabilities and market values of the assets at 31 March 2009 of the group’s defined benefit schemes, details of which
are provided above, have been assessed by the group’s actuaries in accordance with the requirements of FRS 17.

The major assumptions used in the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of assumptions used for the
valuations of ail group schemes) were as follows:

2009 2008
Valuation Method Projected Projected
unit unit
Price inflation 2.90% 3.40%
Salary increase 3.90% 4.90%
Pension increases in payment* 3.00% 3.40%
Pensicn increases in deferment* 2.90% 3.40%
Discount rate 6.70% 6.40%
Longevity at age 65 for pensioners retiring now
- men 20.1 20.1
- women 23.2 23.2
Longevity at age 65 for pensioners retiring in 20 years
- men 209 20.9
- women 239 23.9

* In excess of any Guaranteed Minimum Pension.

42 Severn Trent Water Annual Report and Acceunts 2009



Notes to the financial statements

17 Pensions continued

Amaunts recognised in the profit and loss account in respect of these defined benefii schermes are as follows:

Group and company

2009 2008
£m Em
Amounts charged to operating costs
Current service cost {21.2) (29.8)
Past service costs (0.5) -
21.7) (29.8)
Amounts charged to net finance costs
Interest cost B8t.7) (71.6)
Expected return on scheme assets 79.8 83.0
(1.9) 1.4
Total amount charged in profit and loss account {23.6) (18.4)

Actuarial gains and losses have been reported in the statement of recognised gains and losses.

An element of the service cost is capitalised in line with the group’s accounting poficies.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s obligations under defined benefi: schemes is as follows:

Group and company

2009 2008

Em Em

Present value of defined benefit obligations - funded schemes (1,162.4) (1,295.5)
Total fair value of assets 956.6 1.184.0
(205.8) (111.5)

Asset not recognised (3.7) -
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (before deferred tax) (209.5) (111.5)
Deferred tax 58.7 31.2
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (150.8) (80.3)

Movements in the present value of the defined obligation were as follows:

Group and company

2009 2008

£m Em

At 1 April 1,295.5 1,314 .1
Service cost 21.2 29.8
Past service costs 0.5 -
Interest cost 81.7 .6
Contributions from scheme members 1.6 1.7
Actuarial gain (184.5) {(71.71
Benefits paid (59.6) (56.0)
At 31 March 1,162.4 1.295.5
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17 Pensions continued

Movements in the fair value of the schemes assets were as foliows:
Group and compary

2009 2008

E£m Em

At 1 April 1,184.0 1,208.6
Expected return on scheme assets 79.8 83.0
Contributions 26.8 389
Special contributions 9.2 1.6
Contributions from scheme members 16 1.7
Actuarial loss (291.2) {109.8)
Benefits paid (59.8) (56.0)
At 31 March 956.6 1,184.0

The analysis of the assets in the schemes and the expected rates or return were:
Group and company

2009 2008

Expected Fair value Expected Fair value

return of assets return of assels

£m £m

Equities 8.00% 484.2 8.00% 674.6
Gilts 4.20% 208.4 4.55% 320.7
Corparate bonds 6.70% 205.0 6.40% 11.0
Property 6.10% 46.5 6.30% 68.3
Cash 0.50% 12.5 5.25% 9.4
Total fair value of assets 956.6 1,184.0

The expected rate of return on scheme assets is based on market expectations at the beginning of the period for returns over the life
of the benefit obligations. For gilts and corporate bonds the expected rates of return are based on market yields at the previous balance
sheet date.

For equities. an equity risk premium has been added to the gilt raie,
The actual return on scheme assets was a loss of £211.4 million {2008: £25.8 million loss).

The estimated amount of normal contributions expecied to be paid to the schemes during the year ending 31 March 2010 is
£30.4 million and lump sum deficit contributions of £9.3 million are planned.

The history of the actual and expected performance of pension scheme assets and liabilities is:

Group and company

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£m £Em £€m £m £m

Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets (291.2) {(109.8) (10.9) 1375 29.5
Percentage of scheme assets 30.4% 9.3% 0.9% 12.5% 3.6%
Experience adjustments an scheme liabilities 184.5 7.7 8.9 (111.5) 58
Percentage of scheme liabilities 15.9% 5.5% C.7% 8.9% 0.6%
Actuarial (foss)/gain in the statement of recognised gains and losses (106.7) {38.1) (19.8) 26.0 35.3
Percentage of scheme liabilities 9.2% 2.9% 1.5% 2.1% 3.4%

Defined contribution schemes

The group also operates defined contribuiion arrangements for certain of its UK employees. In September 2001, the Severn Trent Group
Pension Scheme (an occupational defined contribution scheme) was established to ensure compliance with stakehelder legistation and
to provide the group with an alternative pension arrangement. This was closed to new entrants on 1 April 2005 and replaced by the
Severn Trent Stakeholder Pension Scheme.

The total cost charged 1o operating costs of £4.0 million {2008: £0.4 million) represents contributions payable to these schemes by the
group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. As at 31 March 2009 all {2008: 100%) contributions due in respect of the current

reporting pertod have been paid over to the schemes,
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18 Share based payments

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees and details of the share awards outstanding during
the year are as follows:

Employee Approved Unapproved

Sharesave Share Share

Scheme Option Scheme Option Scheme

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Number average Number average Number average

of share exercise of share exercise of share exercise

oplions price oplions price options price

Outstanding at 1 April 2007 3.414,767 736p 16.558 801p 20,292 729p
Granted during the year 583,803 1.221p - - - -
Farfeited during the year (73,442) 869p - - - -
Cancelted during the period 173,496 678p - - - -
Exercised during the period (B66,224) 554p (3.035) 988p (5.498) 771p
Expired during the period (8.226) 743p - - - -
Transferred to other group companies - - (3.145) 705p {6,253) 692p
Outstanding at 1 April 2008 3.224.174 866p 10,378 776p 8,54 729p
Granted during the year 1.566,089 862p - - - -
Forfeited during the year (49,413) 971p - - - -
Cancelled during the period (268,840) 1.333p - - - -
Exercised during the period (881,148) 659p {3.828) 899p - -
Expired during the period (20.585) 762p (3.418) 688p (8,541} 702p
Transferred to other group companies (123.094) 965p - - - -
Outstanding at 31 March 2009 3,447,183 876p 3,124 720p - -

The weighted average share price during the period was £12.70 (2008: £14.20).

a) Share Option Schemes
The options outstanding at the end of the period are exercisable as shown below.

i) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the Severn Trent Plc board may grant those employees who have entered into an
HM Revenue and Customs approved Save As You Earn contract for a period of three or five years, the right to purchase ordinary
shares in Severn Trent Plc. Options outstanding at 31 March 2009 were as follows:

Number of

MNormal date shares

Date of grant of exercise  Option price 2009 2008
January 2001 2008 568p - 55346
January 2002 2009 548p 63,899 68,358
January 2003 2008 or 2010 536p 75,784 415,556
January 2004 2009 or 2001 592p 242,076 253,835
January 2005 2008, 2010 or 2012 758p 324,075 713,957
January 2006 2009, 2011 or 2013 823p 537,724 664,742
January 2007 2010, 2012 or 2014 1172p 322,203 470,359
January 2008 2011 or 2013 1.2217p 318,431 582,021

January 2009 2012 or 2014 862p 1,562,991 -

3,447,183 3,224,174

ii) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)
Under the SIP the board of Severn Trent Plc may grant awards to employees of Severn Trent group companies. During the year the board
of Severn Trent Plc has announced that it will make awards under the SIP based on performance against the company's KPI targets.

Eligible employees will be entitled to shares to a maximum value of £750. It is expected that these awards will be made in August 2009.

SIP shares rest with employees on the date of grant.
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18 Share based payments continued
ii) Approved Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme (formerly Executive Share Opiion Scheme), the Severn Trent Pl board has granted
directors and other executives options to purchase ordinary shares in Severn Trent Plc. Options outstanding under this scheme at

31 March 2009 were as follows:

MNumber of

Normal date shares

Date of gran of exercise  Option price 2009 2008
June 1999 2002-09 934p - 321
June 2000 200310 688p - 3.416
June 2002 2005-12 720p 3,124 3,751
3,124 10,378

iv) Unapproved Share Option Scheme

The Severn Trent Plc board has granted executives options to purchase ordinary shares in Severn Trent Plc under an unapproved share

option scheme. There were no options outstanding under this scheme at 31 March 2009.

Number of

Normal date shares

Date of grant of exercise  Option price 2009 2008
June 1999 2002-09 934p - 108
June 2000 2003-10 688p - 5,449
June 2002 200512 720p - 2,984
- .51

b) Long Term Incentive Plan (LTiP)

Under the LTIP conditional awards of Severn Trent Plc shares may be made to executive directors and senior staff. Awards are suhject

to performance conditions and continued employment throughout the vesting period.

The LTIP awards are subject to total shareholder return for Severn Trent Plc measured refative to the companies ranked 51-150 by

market capitalisation in the FTSE index (excluding investment trusts}.

c) Fair values of awards made in the year

2009 2008
Fair value Fair value
Number Em Number Em
LTIP awards 123,743 0.9 89,539 0.4
Sharesave options 1,566,089 4.2 583803 1.8
The fair value of the LTIP awards was calculated using the Monte Carlo method. The principal assumptions were as follows:
LTIP award year 2008/09 2007/08
Share price at grant date 1,280p 1,370p
Number of shares awarded 123,743 89,539
Number of employees 23 20
Vesting period (years) 3 3
Expecied volatility 17% 15%
Expected life (years) 3 3
Expected dividend yield nfa nfa
Proportion of employees expected to cease employment before vesting 0% 0%
Expectation of meeting economic profit performance criteria n/a nfa
Fair value per share (EP scheme/TSR scheme) 749p 477p
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18 Share based payments continued
¢} Fair values of awards made in the year continued

The fair value of the Sharesave options was calcutated using the Black Scholes madet. The principat assumptions were as follows:

Scheme year 2008/09 200708 2006/07
Scheme type 3 year 5 year 3 year 5 year 3 year 5 year 7 year
Share price at grant date B62p 862p 1.520p 1,520p 1.428p 1.428p 1,428p
Number of options granted 858,622 707,467 350,196 233,607 294,531 156,000 36,547
Number of employees 1,880 827 1,638 630 1,420 511 96
Vesting period {years} 3 5 3 5 3 5 7
Expected volatility 17% 17% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15%
Option life {years) 3.5 5.5 35 5.5 35 5.5 75
Expected life (years) 3.25 5.25 3.25 5.25 3.25 5.25 7.25
Risk free rate 2.24% 2.74% 4.24% 4.29% 5.19% 5.04% 492%
Expected dividend yield 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Proportion of employees
expected to cease
employment before vesting 15.0% 17.0% 15.0% 17.0% 15.0% 17.0% 13.0%
Fair value per share -
sharesave 272p 268p 307p 312p 295p 305p 306p
Volatility is based on historical observations as adjusted for unusual market fluctuations.
During the period, the group recognised total expenses of £4.7 million (2008: £3.4 million} related to equity settled share based
payment transactions.
19 Group cash flow statement
a) Reconciliation of profit before interest to net cash inflow from operating activities
2009 2008
£000 E0O0
Operating profit 468.9 407.1
Depreciation charge {note 7} 338.0 3224
Profit on disposal of fixed assets {4.0) (1.6)
Deferred income received 1.4 0.1
Deferred income credited to profit and 10ss account (3.3) {2.8)
Provistons for liabilities and charges charged to profit and loss account 4.3 41.3
Lhilisation of provisions for liabilittes and charges 41.0) (3.4)
Pension service cost tess contributions paid (14.3) (20.7})
Increase in stocks (1.8) (0.2}
Decreasef{increase) in debtors 36 {23.7}
Increasef{decrease) in creditors 1.4 (45.2)
investment written off - {0.1}
Share based payments charge 4.7 3.1
Net cash inflow from operating activities 767.9 676.3
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19 Group cash flow statement continued

b) Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1 April Other non At 31 March

2008 Cash flow cash changes 2009

im Em £m Em

Cash at bank and in hand - 12.9 - 129

Overdrafts (note 10) (383.0) 3828 - 0.2)
Net cash (383.0) 395.7 - 12.7

Debt due within one year (note 10) (78.8) (68.1 - (146.7)

Debt due after one year (note 11) (3,082.2) (263.6) {20.0) (3.365.8)

Finance leases (note 10 and 11} (385.0} 411 - {343.9)
Short term deposits (note 12} 448.7 {301.8) -, 1471

Net debt (note 12) (3.480.1) (196.5) (20.0) (3.696.6)

20 Ultimate and immediate parent company and related party transactions

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling entity is Severn Trent Plc which is registered in England and Wales. The immediate
parent undertaking is Severn Trent {(W&S} Limited which is registered in England and Wales. Copies of the Annual Report and Accounts

of Severn Trent Plc, are available from the Company Secretary, Severn Trent Plc, 2297 Coventry Road, Birmingham B26 3PU.

Alternatively. the repart can be viewed and downloaded from Severn Trent Plc’s website at: www.severntrent.comireports2009

As a wholly owned subsidiary, the company has taken advantage of the exemption from disclosing related party transactions with other

group undertakings in accordance with the accounting standard FRS 8 'Related Party Disclosures’.
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Water Industry Act 1991

Further to the requirements of company law, the directors are
required to prepare financial statements which comply with the
requirements of Condition F Instrument of Appointment of the
company as a water and sewerage undertaker under the Water
Industry Act 1991 and Reguiatory Accounting Guidelines issued
by the Water Services Regulation Authority. This additionally
requires the directors to:

a} Confirm that, in their opinion, the company has sufficient
financial and management resources for the next twelve
months;

b) Confirm that, in their opinion, the company has sufficient
rights and assets which would enable a special administrator
to manage the affairs, business and property of the
company;

¢) Report to the Water Services Regulation Authority changes
in the company's activities which may be material in relation
to the company's ability (o finance its regulated activities;

d} Undertake ransactions entered into by the appointed
business, with or for the benefit of associated companies or
other businesses or activities of the appointed business, at
arm'’s length; and

e} Keep proper accounting records which comply with
Condition F.

Diversification and the protection of the core business —
Condition F6a

Severn Trent Water Limited and its subsidiary East Worcester
Water Lirmnited (together referred 10 as ‘the Appointees’)
hereby advise:

a) That in the opinion of the directors, the Appointees will have
available to them sufficient financial resources and facilities
to enable them to carry out, for at least the next 12 months,
the Regulated Activity {including the investment programme
necessary to fulfil the Appointees’ obligations under the
Appointment); and

b) Thatin the opinion of the directors, the Appointees will
for at least the next 12 months, have available to them
management resources which are sufficient to enable them
1o carry out those functions.

Tony Wray

Chief Executive

For and on behalf of the board
28 May 2009
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Report of the auditors

to the Water Services Regulation Authority

Independent auditors’ report to the Water Services Regulation
Authority (WSRA) and Severn Trent Water Limited and
subsidiary undertakings (the group)

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of the group which
incorporates East Worcester Water Limited and its other
subsidiary undertakings for the year ended 31 March 2009

set out on pages 52 to 67 which comprise:

* the regulatory historical cost accounting statements for the
group, comprising the regulatory historical cost profit and loss
account and the regulatory historicai cost balance sheet; and
the regulatory current cost accounting statements for the
Appointed Business comprising the current cost profit and loss
account, the current cost balance sheet, the current cost cash
flow statement and the related notes numbered 1 to 12 o the
current cost financial statements including the statement on
accounting policies on which the Regulatory Accounts have
been prepared.

This report is made, on terms that have been agreed, solely to
the company and the WSRA in order to meet the requirements
of Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment granted by the
Secretary of State for the Environment to the company as water
and sewerage undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 {the
Regulatory Licence). Qur audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the company and the WSRA those matters that
we have agreed 10 state to them in our report, in order (a} to
assist the company to meet its obligations under the company’s
Instrument of Appaintment to procure such a report and (b) to
facilitate the carrying out by the WSRA of its regulatory functions,
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the company and the WSRA, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinion we have formed.

Basis of preparation

The Regulatory Accounts have been prepared in accordance with
Condition F of the Regulatory Licence and the Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines (being versions 1.04, 2.03, 3.06, 4.03
and 5.04), the accounting policies set out in the statement of
accounting policies and, in the case of the regulatory historical
cost accounting siatements, under the historical cost convention.

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the statutory financiat
statements of the group. There are differences between United
Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP'}
and the basis of preparation of information provided in the
requlatory accounts because the Regulatory Accounting
Guidelines specify alternative treatment or disclosure in certain
respects. Where the Regulatory Acceunting Guidelines do not
specially address an accounting issue, they then require UK
GAAP to be followed. Financial information other than that
prepared wholly on the basis of UK GAAP may not necessarily
represent a true and fair view of the financial performance or
financial position of a company as shown in financial statements
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,

50 Severn Trent Water Annual Report and Accounts 2009

Respective responsibilities of the Regulator, the directors
and auditors

The nature, form and content of Regulatory Accounts are
determined by the WSRA. It is not appropriate for us to assess
whether the nature of the information being reported upon is
suitabie or appropriate for the WSRA's purposes. Accordingly,
we make no such assessment.

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Regulatory
Accounts in accordance with the Regulatory Accounting
Guidelines are set in the statemert of directors’ responsibilities
for regulatory information on page 21.

Our responsibility is to audit the Regulatory Accounts in
accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board, except as stated
in the 'Basis of audit opinien’ below and having regard to the
guidance contained in Audit Technical Release 05/03 ‘Reporting
to Regulators of Regutated Entities”.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the regulatory
historical cost accounting statements present fairly, under the
historical cost convention, the revenues and costs, assets and
liabilities of the Appointee and the Appointed Business in
accordance with the company’s Instrument of Appointment and
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 2.03 (Guideline for classification
of expenditure], Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3.06 (Guideline
for the contents of regulatery accounts) and Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 4.03 (Guideline for the analysis of operating
costs and assets) and whether the regulatory current cost
accounting statements on pages 54 to 67 have been property
prepared in accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
1.04 (Guideline for accounting for current costs and regulatory
capital values), Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3.06 and
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4.03. We also report to you

if, in our gpinien, the company has not kept proper accounting
records as required by paragraph 3 of Condition F of the
Regulatory Licence and whether the information is in agreerment
with the Appointees’ accounting records and has been properly
prepared in accordance with the requirements of Condition F and
as appropriate, Regulatary Accounting Guideline 1.04, Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 2.03, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3.06
and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4,03,

We read the other information contained within the Regulatcry
Accounts, including any supplementary schedules on which we
do not express an audit opinion, and consider the implications for
our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the Regutatory Accounts. The other
information comprises the performance review, the notes on
regulatory information and the additional information required

by the Regulatory licence.




Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} issued by the Auditing
Practices Board except as noted below. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the Regulatory Accounts. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by
the directors in the preparation of the Regulatory Accounts, and
of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the Regulatory Accounts are free from rmaterial
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. However, as the nature, form and content of Regulatory
Accounts are determined by the WSRA, we did not evaluate the
overall adequacy of the presentation of the information, which
would have been required if we were to express an audit opinion
under Auditing Standards.

Our opinion on the Regulatory Accounts is separate from our
opinion on the statutory accounts of the company on which

we report, which are prepared for a different purpose. Our audit
repast in refation to the statutory accounts of the company

{our *Statutory” audit) was made solely to the company's
members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985. Qur Statutory audit work was undertaken
so that we might state to the company's members those matters
we are required to state to them in a statutory auditors’ report and
for no other purpose.

In those circumstances, 1o the fullest permitted by law, we do not
accept of assume any responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our
Statutory audit work, for our Statutory audit report, or for the
opinions we have formed in respect of that Statutory audit.

The regulatory historical cost accounting statements on pages
52 to 53 have been drawn up in accordance with Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 3.06 in that infrastructure renewals
accounting as applied in previous years should continue to be
applied and accordingly that the relevant sections of Financial
Reporting Standards 12 and 15 be disapplied. This represenis

a departure from Generally Accepted Accounting Principtes, and
a reconciliation of the balance sheet drawn up on this basis with
that drawn up under Companies Act 1985 is given in note 11.

Audit opinion

In our opinion the Regulatory Accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2009 fairly present in accordance with
Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment granted by the
Secretary of State for the Environment to the company as water
and sewerage undertaker under the Water [ndustry Act 1997, the
Regutatory Accounting Guidelines issued by the WSRA and the
accounting policies set out in note 2 to the Regulatory Accounts
the staie of the company's affairs at 31 March 2009 on a
histarical cost and current cost basis, the historical cost and
current cost profit for the year and the current cost cash flow for
the year and have been properly prepared in accordance with
those conditions, guidelines and accounting policies.

We are also required 1o report in respect of various specific
obligations of the company as set out in iis Instrument of
Appaintment. In respect of these obligations, we report that
in our opinion:

a) proper accounting records have been kept by the Appoiniees
as required by paragraph 3 of Condition F of the Instrument;

b) the information is in agreement with the Appointees’
accounting records and has been properly prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Condition F and,
as appropriate, Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1.04,
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 2.03, Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 3.06 and Regulatory Accounting
Guideline 4.03 issued by the WSRA;

c} ihe regulatory historical cost accounting staiements on
pages 52 to 53 present fairly, under the historica! cost
convention, the revenues and costs, assets and liabilities of
the company and its appoinied business in accordance with
the Appointees’ Instrument of Appointment and Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 2.03, Regutaiory Accounting Guidelineg
3.06 and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4.03 issued by
the WSRA;

d} The regulatory current cost accounting statements on pages
54 to 67 have been pioperly prepared in accordance with
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 1.04, Regulatory

Accounting Guideline 3.06 and Regulatory Accounting
F E IGU| line 4. 03 issued by the WSRA.

Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants
Birmingham UK

28 May 2009

The maintenance and integrity of the Severn Trent Water’s website
is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the
auditors does not involve consideration of these matters or any
changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since
they were initially presented on the website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial staterments may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Regulatory accounts - historical cost financial statements

Group profit and loss account year ended 31 March 2009

Appointed appoirl:‘ng Inter Appointed appoirr:gz Imer
business business segment business business segment
2008 2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008 2008
Em Em Em £m £m £Em Em £m
Turnover 1,309.5 71 ©.1) 1,316.5 12568 9.4 0.9) 11,2653
Operating costs (623.2) (13.0) 79 (628.3) (683.7) (13.2) 1.5 (689.4)
Historical cost depreciation (216.2) - {216.2) (201.7) - - (201.7)
Other operating income 4.0 7.8 (7.8) 4.0 1.7 6.6 {6.6) 1.7
Operating profit 4741 1.9 - 476.0 3731 2.8 - 375.9
Other income 1.4 2.0 - 3.4 1.7 2.2 - 3.9
Net interest payabie (187.3) - - (187.3) {166.8) - - (166.8)
Profit on ordinary activities
before taxation 288.2 39 - 2921 208.0 5.0 - 213.0
Taxation on profit on ordinary
activities
Current tax {64.1) 1.1) - (65.2) 820 (2.8) - {64.8)
Deferred tax (52.4) - - (52.4) 215 - - 21.5
Taxation (116.5) {1.1) - (117.6} (40.5) (2.8) - {43.3)
Profit on ordinary activities
after taxation 171.7 2.8 - 174.5 167.5 2.2 - 169.7
Dividends (151.9) (2.8) - {154.7) (260.9) 2.2) - (263.1)
Retained profit/(loss) for the financial year 19.8 - - 19.8 {93.4} - - (93.4}
Statement of total recognised gains and losses year ended 31 March 2009
Non Non
Appeinted  appainted Inter Appointed appoinied Intes
business business segment business business segment
2009 2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008 2008
£m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m
Profit for the financial year 171.7 2.8 - 174.5 167.5 2.2 - 169.7
Actuarial foss (110.4) - - {110.4) {38.1) - - {38.1}
Tax on actuarial loss 309 - - 30.9 10.7 - - 10.7
Adjustment in respect of
tax rate change on deferred tax - - - - 08 - - 0.8
Total recognised gains and losses
for the financial year 92.2 2.8 - 95.0 140.8 2.2 - 143.1

The group results presented are for Severn Trent Water Limited and its subsidiary underiakings including East Worcester Water Limited.
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Group balance sheet as at 31 March 2009

Non Non
Appointed appointed Inter Appointed appointed Inter
business business segment business business segment
2009 2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008 2008
Notes £m £m Em £m Em £m £m Em
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 11 5,673.9 2.6 - 5,676.5 54207 - - 54207
Investments - - - - - - - -
5.673.9 2.6 - 5,676.5 54207 - - 54207
Current assets
Stocks 8.0 - - 8.0 6.2 - - 6.2
Debtors Bl 281.1 - - 281.1 301.2 - - 301.2
Short term deposits 1471 - - 1471 448.7 - - 4487
Cash at bank and in hand 12.9 - - 12.9 - - - -
4491 - - 4491 756.1 - ~ 7561
Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year
Overdrafts 0.2) - - 0.2) (383.00 - - (383.0)
Creditors (351.8) (2.6) - (354.4) (342.4) - - (342.4)
Borrowings (190.7) - - (190.1) {118.2) - - {118.2)
Corporation tax payable {45.7) - - (45.7) (42.8) - - (42.8)
Infrastructure renewal accrual 8.4 - - (8.4) {30.5) - - (30.5)
(596.2) (2.6) - (598.8) (916.9) - - (916.9)
Net current liabilities (147.1) (2.6) - (149.7) (i160.8) - - {160.8)
Total assets less
current liabilities 5,526.8 - - 5,526.8 5.259.9 - - 52599
Creditors: amounts failing
due after more than one year
Borrowings (3,.666.3) - - (3,666.3) (3,427.6) - - (3,427.6)
Other creditors (4.5) - - 4.5) {an - - (4.1}
(3,670.8) - - (3,670.8) (3.431.7) - - {3.431.7)
Provision for liabilities and charges
- Deferred taxation {503.3) - - (503.3) {450.9) - - (450.9)
- Other provisions (5.8) - - (5.8) {42.5) - - (42.5)
Deferred income (37.1) - - (37.1) (38.8) - - (38.8)
Pension deficit (150.8) - - {150.8) (80.3) - - (80.3}
Net assets 1,159.0 - - 11590 1,215.7 - - 1.215.7
Capital and reserves
Called up share capitai 1,000.0 - - 10000 10000 - - 1.000.0
Profit and loss account 159.0 - - 159.0 215.7 - - 215.7
Shareholders’ funds 1,159.0 - - 1,15%.0 12357 - - 12157
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Regulatory accounts — current cost financial statements

Group profit and loss account: appointed business year ended 31 March 2009

2009 2008
Notes Em £m
Turnover 3a 1,309.5 1.256.8
Current cost operating €osts 3d (896.4) (939.6)
Other operating income 3b 3.9 1.6
417.0 318.8
Warking capital adjustment 3c 01 (0.4)
Current cost operating profit 4171 J18.4
Cther income 1.4 1.7
Net interest payable (187.3) (166.8)
Financing adjustrment (10.6) 104.9
Current cost profit before taxation 220.6 258.2
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
Current tax (64.1) (62.0)
Deferred tax {52.4) 215
Taxation (116.5) (40.5)
Current cost profit attributable to shareholders after taxation 104.1 2117
Dividend (151.9) (260.9)
Current cost loss retained (47.8) (43.2)
Statement of total recognised gains and losses: appointed business year ended 31 March 2009
2009 2008
Em Em
Current cost profit for the financial year 104.1 2177
Actuarial loss (110.4) (38.1)
Tax on actuarial loss 309 10.7
Adjustment in respect of tax rate change on deferred tax - 08
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year 246 1911
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Group balance sheet: appointed business as at 31 March 2009

2009 2008
Nates £m Em

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 4c 30,1349 299374
Third party contributions since 1989/90 (1.611.2) (1.507.8}

28,523.7 28,4296
Working capital 6.3 28.7
Short term deposils 160.0 448.7
Querdrafts (0.2} (383.0)
Infrastructure renewals accrual 8.4) (30.5)
Net operating assets 28,681.4 28,4935
Non operating assets and liabilities
Borrowings {190.1) (118.2)
Non trade debtors 2.2 3.5
Non trade creditors due within one year (711.2) (67.2)
Corporation tax payable (45.7) {42.8)
Total non operating assets and liabilities (304.8) (224.7)
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings (3.666.3) {3.427.6)
Other creditors (4.5) {4.1)

(3,670.8) (3.431.7)
Provision for liabilities and charges
- Deferred taxation (503.3) (450.9)
— Other provisions (5.8) (42.5)
Pension deficit {150.8) {80.3)
Net provisions (659.9) (573.7)
Total assets 24,0459 24,2634
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 1,000.0 1,000.0
Profit and loss account 6 (427.1) (302.8)
Current cost reserve 7 23,473.0 23,566.2

24,0459 24,2634
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Group cash flow statement year ended 31 March 2009

Notes

Appointed
business

Non
appointed
business

Total

Appointed
business

Non
appointed
business Total

2009 2009
£Em £m

2009 2009 2009
Em £m Em

2009
£m

2008 2008
£m £Em

2008
Em

2008 2008 2008
£m £Em Em

Net cash inflow from

operating activities 8
Returns on investments

and servicing of finance

Interest received

Interest paid

Interest element of finance
lease rental payments

761.4

12.5
(157.7)

(16.2)

6.5

- 12.5
- (\57.7)

- (16.2)

767.9

671.3

8.8
(128.0)

(20.6}

5.0 676.3

8.8
{128.0}

(20.8)

Net cash flow from returns
on investment and
servicing of finance

(161.4)

(161.9)

(139.8)

- (139.8)

Taxation

(56.7)

(1.1)

(57.8)

{49.9)

(2.8} (52.7}

Capital expenditure

Purchase of tangibie
fixed assets

Grants and contributions
received

Infrastructure renewals
expenditure
Disposal of fixed assets

(491.5})
29.4

(130.7)
6.0

(2.6) (494.7)
- 29.4

- (130.1)
- 6.0

(479.7)
44.2

{(111.3}
2.9

(479.7)
44.2

(111.3)
29

Net cash flow from
investing activities

(586.2)

(2.6)

(588.8)

(543.9

- {543.9)

Equity dividends paid

(151.9)

(2.8)

(154.7)

(260.9)

(2.2) (263.1)

Net cash outflow before
management of liquid
resources and financing

(194.8)

(194.8)

(323.2)

- (323.2)

Management of liguid
resources

301.6

3016

(446.8)

- (446.8)

Net cash flow before financing
Financing

Finance leases repaid

Loans advanced

Loans repaid

Purchase of shares

106.8

{41.1)
410.5

(78.8)

1.7

- {41.1)
- 410.5

- (78.8)
- 17

106.8

{770.0}

(23.1)

1.124.3

(102.5)

- {770.0)

(23.1)
1,124.3
(102.5)

288.9

2889

998.7

- §98.7

Net increase in cash

395.7

395.7

228.7

- 228.7
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Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

Nen Non
Appointed appointed Appainted appointed
business business Total business business Total
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008
Em Em Em Em £m Em Em £m Em £m £m £m
Met increase
in cash as above 395.7 - 395.7 228.7 - 228.7
Cash flow from
movement in net debt (290.6) - {290.6) (998.7) - (998.7)
Cash flow from
moverment in liquid
resources (301.6) - (301.6) 446.8 - 446.8
Change in net debt
resulting from cash flows (196.5) - (196.5) {323.2) - (323.2)
Rolled up interest on debt (20.0) - (20.0) (37.0) - (37.0)
Increase in net debt (216.5} - {216.5) (360.29) - (360.2)
Opening net debt (3.480.1) - (3.480.1) {3,119.9) - (3,119.9)
Closing net debt (3,696.6) - (3.696.6) (3.480.1) - {3,480.17)
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Year ended 31 March 2008

1 Regulatory reporting

The regulatory accounts as reported on pages 52 to 68 should
be read in conjunction with the operating and financial review
an pages 3 to 15 for further understanding of the performance
of the business.

It should afso be noted that the company has reassessed its
forecast for infrastructure renewal expenditure and thus the
infrastructure renewals charge has been reduced to reflect this.

In particular, attention is drawn to pages 16 and 17 of the
Directors’ repart which sets out the link between Directors’ pay
and standards of performance and page 19 of the Directors’
report in respect of the statement of disclosure of information
to auditors.

2 Accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The regulatory financial statements have been prepared on a
group basis for Severn Trent Water Limited and its subsidiary
undertakings o meet the requirements of the Water Services
Regulation Authority {WSRA),

The regulatory financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Conditicn F of the Instruments of Appointment of
the Water and Sewerage Undertakers and the Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines as issued by the WSRA, the accounting
policies set out in the statement of accourting policies and, in the
case of the regulatory historical cost accounting statements, under
the histerical cost convention.

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with guidance
issued oy the WSRA for modified real term financial statements
suitable for regulation in the water industry. They measure
profitability on the basis of real financial capital maintenance, in
the context of assets which are valued at their current cost vaiue
o the business, with the exception of specialised operational and
infrastructure assets.

The regulatory financial statements are separate from the
statutery financial statements of the company. There are
differences between United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (UK GAAP) and the basis of preparation of
information provided in the regulatory accounts because the
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines specify alternative treatment or
disclosure in certain respects. Where the Regulatory Accounting
Guidelines do not specifically address an accounting issue, then
they require UK GAAP to be followed. Financial information other
than that prepared wholly on the basis of UK GAAP may not
necessarily represent a true and fair view of the financial
performance or financial position of a company as shown in
financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985.

b) General

The accounting policies used are the same as those adopted in
the statutory histarical cost financial statements on pages 23 o
48, except as set out below.

c} Operating costs

Income relating to electricity generation is deducted from
operating costs. The difference between this treatment and that
adopted in the statutory accounts is described in note 11.
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Ir prior years the group has treated the income and costs
generated by this activity as turnover and operating costs
respectively within the non appointed business.

This change has been adopted prospectively. in 2008 turnaver
for the non appainted business included £2.7 million arising from
power generation and £0.6 million of related operating costs.

If the guidance in PRO9/14 had been adopted retrospectively
these armounts would have been reclassified to operating
expenditure of the appointed business.

d) Tangible fixed assets

Assets in operationad use are vatued at the replacement cost of
their operating capability. To the extent that the regulatory regime
daes not allow such assets to earn a return high encugh to justify
that value, this represents a medification of the value to the
business principle. Also, no provisicn is made for the possible
funding of future replacements of assets by contributions from
third parties and, to the extent that some of the tangible fixed
assets would on replacement be so funded, replacement cost
again differs from value o the business. Redundant assets are
valued at their recoverable amounts,

An Asset Management Plan (AMP) survey of existing assets as at
31 March 1998 was undertaken during 1998/99 and the
adjustments to asset values as a result of that exercise, were
included within the tangible fixed asset note. In the intervening
years, between AMP surveys, values are restated to take account
of changes in the general level of inflation, as measured by
changes in Retail Price Index (RPI), and any other significant
changes in assel records identified during the year.

i} Non infrastructure assets

Specialised operational assets:

The gross replacement cost of specialised operational assets
has been derived using the latest cost information provided by
the AMP.

The unamortised portion of third party contributions received is
deducted in arriving at net operating assets {as described below
in nate 1d).

Non specialised eperational assets:

Non specialised sperational assets are valued on the basis of
open market value for existing use at 31 March 1991 and have
been expressed in current terms by adjusting for movements in
property values.

ii) Infrastructure assets

Mains, sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage
reservoirs, dams and sludge pipelines are valued at replacement
cost, deterrmined principally on the basis of unit cost data
provided by the AMP.

iii) Other assets
All other assets are valued on the basis of data provided by ;
the AMP. i

iv] Surplus land

Surplus land was valued at current market value for the purposes
of the AMP. Any proceeds cn disposal to be passed onto
customers will be taken into account, in accordance with the
requirements contained in Condition B of the Instruments of
Appointment as Water and Sewerage Undertakers.
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2 Accounting policies continued
€) Grants and other third party contributions

Grants, infrastructure and other third party contributions received since 31 March 1990 are caried forward to the extent that any
balance has not been credited to revenue. The balance carried forward is restated for the change in RPI for the year.

f) Real financial capital maintenance adjustments

These adjustments are made to historical cost operating profit in order 1o arrive at profit afier the maintenance of financial capital in real

terms:

Working capital adjustment - this is calculated by applying the change in RPI aver the year 1o the opening total of rade debtors and

stock, less trade creditors.

Financing adjustment - this is calculated by applying the change in RPI over the year to the opening balance of net finance, which
comprises all assets and liabilities in the balance sheet apart from those included in working capital and excluding fixed assets, deferred

taxation provision, index linked debt and dividends payable.

3 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs

a) Turnover

Water  Sewerage 2009 Water Sewerage 2008
services services Total services services Toial
Em £m Em Em Em Em
Unmeasured - household 3220 3659 6879 318.0 3471 665.1
Unmeasured — non household 2.7 4.8 75 2.5 4.0 6.5
Unmeasured 3247 370.7 695.4 3205 3511 671.6
Measured ~ household 1275 136.2 2637 113.9 129.4 243.3
Measured - non household 114.8 154.3 269.1 1151 140.7 255.2
Measured 242.3 290.5 §532.8 229.0 269.5 498.5
Trade effluent - 12.0 12.0 - 17.6 17.6
Large user tariffs and special agreements 24.0 29.7 53.7 24.0 26.9 50.9
Reverwe grants - 0.4 0.4 - 0.4 0.4
Non potable large user tariffs and special agreements - - - - - -
Rechargeable works 16 0.5 2.1 1.5 0.2 1.7
Bulk suppliesfinter company 40 - 4.0 4.2 - 4.2
Other 4.0 0.1 4.1 4.1 0.3 4.4
Third parties 9.6 0.6 10.2 9.8 0.5 10.3
Other sources 1.8 2 5.0 3.2 4.3 75
Total turnover 602.4 7071 1,309.5 586.5 670.3 1,256.8
b} Other operating income
Current cost profit on disposal of tangible
fixed asseis 1.1 2.8 3.9 0.8 0.8 1.6
Total 1.1 2.8 39 0.8 0.8 1.6
c) Working capital adjustment 0.1 - 0.1 ©.1) (0.3) (0.4)
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3 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs continued
d) Analysis of operating costs and tangible fixed assets

2009
Water services Sewerage services Business analysis
Sludge Sewage
Resources Water reatment  treatment  Sewesage
and Distri- services Sewage and  /disposal  services Customer Scientific Cost of
treatment bution subtotal  Sewerage  treatment disposal subtoral subtatal  services  services regulation Total
£m £m Em £m Em £m Em Em £m £m Em Em
Direct costs
Employment costs 6.7 16.7 234 74 a8 5.8 116 250
Power 10.2 16.9 271 56 10.7 3.0 77 13.3
Agencies - - - - - - - -
Hired and contracted 41 3.2 17.3 89 5.1 154 20.5 29.4
Associated companies 1.0 0.1 1.1 - - - - -
Materials and
consumables 79 3.2 1 1.1 45 17 12.2 13.3
Service charges 1.4 - 1.4 3.2 59 - 59 9.1
Bulk supply imports 9.0 - 90 - - - - -
Other direct costs 0.3 45 48 1.3 0.7 0.4 11 2.4
Total direct costs 50.6 54.6 105.2 215 387 26.3 65.0 925 36.5 11 6.1 251.4
General and support ~ 26.6 28.6 55.2 243 359 1.5 534 717 9.2 1.4 1.3 144.8
functional
expenditure 71.2 83.2 160.4 51.8 74.6 43.8 118.4 170.2 45.7 12.5 7.4 396.2
Business activities
recharge 315 349 (45.7) (12.5) (7.4} -
Rates 377 18.3 56.0
Doubtful debts 13.9 16.4 30.3
Exceptional iterns 8.6 108 19.4
2521 2498 501.9
Services for third parties 11.6 16 13.2
Total operating
expenditure 263.7 2514 515.1
Capital costs
Infrastructure
renewals charge 3.0 84.4 674 40.6 406 108.0
Current cost
depreciation 55.4 498 105.2 329 105.2 32.8 138.0 1709 276.1
Amortisation of
deferred income {1.3) 1.9) (3.2)
Business activity
capitat costs - - -
171.3 209.6 380.9
Services for third
parties depreciation 0.4 - 04
Total capital
maintenance 171.7 2096 381.3
Total operating costs 435.4 461.0 896.4
Analysis of tangible
fixed assets
Service activities 17365 73616 90981 184727 17673 3423 2110.2 205829 29.681.0
Business activities 138.0 50.4 870 1374 2754
Service totals 9,236.1 18,5231 2,197.2 20,720.3 29,956.4
Services for third parties 178.5 - 178.5
Total 9,414.6 20,720.3 30,1349
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3 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs continued

d) Analysis of operating costs and tangible fixed assets continued - |
Inctuded within customer service costs is £3.5 million (2008: £4.5 million} and within exceptional items is £5.0 million (2008: nil) ‘
payable to the Severn Trent Trust Fund. |
\
\

The tables on the analysis of operating costs have been prepared in accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guideline number 4.03

on the analysis of operating costs and assets. Direct costs have been charged directly to the service ©o which they relate. General and
support costs are where possible allocated directly to the service to which they relate. Any remaining general and support costs which
cannot be directly allocated to a service are then atlocated over the service activity costs on a pro-rata basis, based on the value of
direct costs and overhead costs already directly allocated. Business activily costs are analysed firstly on & direct basis, then together
with the general and support costs allocated, are apportioned again over the service activity using relevant activity drivers where possible.

2008
Water services Sewerage services Business analysis
Sludge Sewage
Resources Water treatment  treatment  Sewerage
and Distei- services Sewage and  /disposal services Custorrer  Sciertitic Cost of
treatment bution subtotal  Sewerage  ireatment disposal subtotal sublotal  services services  fegulation Total
Em Em Em Em £Em £m Em Em Em Em Em fm
Direct costs
Employment costs 6.2 15.1 213 19 12.3 6.6 18.8 26.8
Power 84 13.7 221 4.0 9.8 - g8 13.8
Agencies - - - - ~ - - -
Hired and contracted 1.8 1.6 13.4 99 6.6 13.0 19.6 295
Associated companies 1.3 0.1 1.4 - - - - -
Materials and
consumables 6.6 28 9.4 1.1 3.4 6.5 99 1.0
Service charges 10.5 - 10.5 3.2 5.3 - 5.3 8.5
Bulk supply imports 9.1 - 9.1 - - - - -
Other direct costs - 54 5.4 1.3 - 01 0.1 14
Total direct costs 43.9 48.7 32.6 274 374 26.2 63.6 91,0 36.3 13.0 5.0 2379
General and support 271 259 530 224 371 17.0 54.1 76.5 9.9 2.0 1.2 142.6
Functicnal
expenditure 7.0 746 1456 498 745 43.2 1M77 1675 48.2 150 6.2 380.5
Business activities
recharge 309 36.5 46.2) {15.0) (6.2) -
Rates 359 211 570
Doubtful debts 10.6 121 22.7
Exceptional itemns 272 36.1 63.3
250.2 27133 523.5
Services for third parties 13.0 20 15.0
Total aperating
expenditure 263.2 2753 538.5
Capital costs
Infrastructure
renewals
charge 1.5 94.0 95.5 497 497 145.2
Current cost
depreciation 32.1 48.6 100.7 26.0 100.5 341 1316 1576 258.3
Amortisation of
deferred income {1.3) (1.5) {2.8)
Business activity
capital casts - - -
194.9 2058 400.7
Services for third
parties depreciation 0.4 - 0.4
Total capital
maintenance 195.3 205.8 4011
Tolal operating costs 458.5 4811 939.6
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3 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs continued
d) Analysis of operating costs and tangible fixed assets continued

2008
Water services Sewerage services Business analysis
Sludge Sewage
Resources Water ueawment  Ueatmenl  Sewerage
and Distri- services Sewage and  fdisposal  services Custormer  Scientific Cost of
treatment Hution sublotal  Sewerage  treatrment disposal subtotal subtotal services services  regulation Total
£m Em Em £m Em £m £m £m £m £m Em
Analysis of tangible
fixed assets
Service activities  1,695.2 73590 90542 184124 16929 3408 20337 204463 29,500.3
Business activitigs 128.7 254 1028 128.2 256.9
Service totals 91829 184378 2.136.5 20,574.3 29,751.2
Services for third parties 180.2 - 180.2
Total 9,3631 20,5743 29,9374

e) Reactive and planned maintenance
Expenditure on reactive and planned maintenance included in operating costs for 2009 in respect of infrastructure assets amaounted
to £24.1 million on water services (2008: £21.7 millien} and £16.1 million for sewerage services {(2008: £14.1 million).

Expenditure on reactive and planned maintenance included in operating costs for 2009 in respect of non infrastructure assets
amounted to £70.0 million on water services {(2008: £10.9 million) and £33.7 million for sewerage services

(2008: £30.7 million}.

4 Analysis of tangible fixed assets by asset type within service
a) Water services tangible fixed assets analysed by asset type

Nen
Specialised  specialised Infra-
aperational  operational structure Other
assels assets assels assets TDlEI|
£m Em £m £m Em

Gross replacement cost
At 1 April 2008 2.3199 1187  8,189.0 354.4 10,9820
RPI and other adjustments 9.1 (0.5) (30.8) {1.8) {42.2)
Additions 4.5 96 35.8 32.0 191.9
Disposals and amounts written off (40.5) 0.2 - (33.4) (74.7)
At 31 March 2009 2,384.8 1276 8,194.0 351.2 11,0576
Depreciation
At 1 April 2008 1,327.3 389 - 250.3 1,616.5
RP! and other adjustments {6.6) (0.2) - {1.8) 8.4)
Charge for year 78.0 2.4 - 25.2 105.6
Disposals and amounts written off {40.5) 0.2) - (32.4) {73.1)
At 31 March 2009 1,358.2 409 - 241.5 1,6406
Net book value
At 31 March 2009 1,026.6 86.7 8,194.0 109.7 9,4170
At 1 April 2008 992.6 788 8,189.0 1041 9,365.5
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4 Anélysis of tangible fixed assets by asset type within service continued

b} Sewerage services tangible fixed assets analysed by assel type

Nen
Specialised  specialised Infra-
opefational operational structure Other
assels assels assels assels Total
£m Em Em £m £Em
Gross replacement cost
At 1 April 2008 4,450.2 136.8 18,1577 325.5 23.070.2
RPI and other adjustments {17.9} {0.5) (74.7) 4.0 {89.1)
Additions 235.1 9.0 119.7 29.8 393.6
Disposals and amounts written off (63.6) 0.3) - {39.0} (102.9)
At 31 March 2009 4,603.8 145.0 18,202.7 320.3 23,271.8
Depreciation
At 1 April 2008 2,242 311 - 219.1 24983
RPI and other adjustments (1.7) 0.2} - (1.8) (13.5)
Charge for year . 136.1 2.4 - 324 170.9
Disposals and amounts written off (63.6) 0.2 - (38.00 (101.8)
At 31 March 2009 2,302.9 39.1 - 211.9 2,5539
Net book value
At 31 March 2009 2,300.9 105.9 18,202.7 108.4 20,7179
At 1 April 2008 2,208.1 997 18,157.7 106.4 20,5719
c) Total tangible fixed assets analysed by asset type
Non
Specialised  speciatised Inkra-
operational  aperational structure Other
assels assels assets assets Total
Em Em Em Em £m
Gross replacement cost
AL T April 2008 6,770.1 2555 26,346.7 679.9 34.052.2
RPI and other adjustments (27.0) (10} (105.5) 2.2 (131.3)
Additions 3496 18.6 155.5 61.8 585.5
Disposals and amounts written off (104.1) (0.5) - {72.4) {177.0)
At 31 March 2009 6.988.6 2726 26,396.7 671.5 34,329.4
Depreciation
At 1 April 2008 3.569.4 76.0 - 469.4 41148
RPI and other adjustments (18.3) (0.4) - (3.2) (21.9)
Charge for year 2141 4.8 - 57.6 276.5
Disposals and amounts written off (104.1) (0.4} - {70.9) (174.9)
At 31 March 2009 33,6611 80.0 - 4534 41945
Net book value
At 31 March 2009 3,3275 192.6 26,396.7 218.1 30,134.9
At 1 Aprit 2008 3,200.7 1795 26,346.7 2105 29,9374
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5 Working capital

2009 2008
Em £m
Stocks 8.0 6.2
Trade debtors:
Measured household 31.0 32.3
Unmeasured household 53.3 54.4
Measured non household 31.9 374
tUnmeasured non household 1.1 1.1
Other 2.3 4.3
Measured income accrual 125.6 119.3
Prepayments and other debtors 33.7 489
Trade creditors (20.3) (15.7)
Deferred income - custormner advance receipts (115.8) (104.8)
Capital creditors and accruals (71.2) (59.4)
Accruals and other creditors (73.3) {95.3)
6.3 28.7
6 Reserves - profit and loss account
£m
At 1 April 2008 (302.8)
Retained current cost loss for the year {47.8)
Share based payments 3.0
FRS 17 actuarial loss {110.4)
Tax on actuarial loss 30.9
At 31 March 2009 (427.1)
7 Reserves - current cost reserve
2009 2008
£m Em
At 1 April 23,566.2 22,656.9
AMP adjustment - -
RPI adjustments:
Fixed assets (109.4) 1.066.3
Working capital ©.1 0.4
Financing 10.6 (104.9)
Grants and third party contributions 5.7 (52.5)

At 31 March

23,473.0 23,566.2
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8 Reconciliation of current cost operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2008 2008
Em Em
Current cost operating profit 4171 3184
Working capital adjustment ©.1) 0.4
Working capital changes 10.6 8.8
Other income 1.4 1.7
Current cost depreciation after amortisation of deferred income 273.3 2559
Current cost profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (3.9) (1.6}
Infrastructure renewals charge 108.0 145.2
Other non cash profit and loss items (45.0) (57.5}
Net cash infiow from operating activities 761.4 671.3
9 Analysis of net debt
Interest rate risk profile
Fixed Floating Inclex
intefest interest linked
rate rate rale Total
£m Em £im Em
Maturity profile
Less than one year 1233 66.8 - 1801
Between one and two years 115 35.4 - 46.9
Between two and five years 451 46.5 147.8 2394
Between five and twenty years 1,526.5 505.7 158.4 2,190.6
In more than twenty years 4163 386 7345 1,189.4
Total borrowings excluding overdrafts 21227 6930 1,040.7 3,856.4
Overdrafis - 0.2 - 0.2
Total borrowings including overdrafts 21227 693.2 1,040.7 3,856.6
Impact of interest rate swaps entered into by the group and company 420.7 {420.7) - -
Total borrowings after the impact of interest rate swaps 2,543.4 272.5 1,040.7 3,856.6
Short term deposits and cash at bank and in hand (160.0} - - (160.0)
Net debt as at 31 March 2009 2,3834 2725 1,040.7 3,696.6
Total borrowings after the impact of interest rate swaps as at
31 March 2008 2,084.8 813.3 1,020.7 3928.8
Short term deposits and cash at bank and in hand - (448.7) - (448.7)
Net debt at 31 March 2008 2,094.8 364.6 1,020.7 3,480.1

Fixed interest debt incurs interest at a weighted average rate of 5.9% (2008: 5.8%). Interest on these borrowings is fixed for a weighted
average period of 12.7 years (2008: 16.9 years).
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10 Reconciliation of HCA operating profit to CCA operating profit

2009 2008
Em £fm
HCA operating profit per regulatory accounts 476.0 3759
Less non appointed activities (1.9) (2.8)
Sub total HCA accounts 4741 3731
Less difference in profit on disposals 0.m (0.1}
Add back working capital adjustment 0.1 {0.4)
Add HCA depreciation including infrastructure renewals charge 321.5 349.7
l.ess CCA depreciation (276.5) (258.7)
Less infrastructure renewals charge (108.0) (145.2)
CCA operating profit 4171 318.4

As in previous years the principal reconciling item between the historical cost profit and the current cost profit is the difference in

depreciation charges.

11 Reconciliation of regulatory accounts to statutory accounts
Fixed assets

In preparation of its statutory accounts, the company has followed common industry practice and adopted the infrastructure renewals

accounting basis as set out in FRS 15 "Tangible Fixed Assets’. However, for the purposes of the Regulatory Accounts, Ofwat has

requested that FRS 15 is not applied for infrastructure renewals accounting. thereby providing a consistent basis with prior years.

A reconciliation to the balance sheet shown in the statutory accounts is set out below:

2009 2008
Em fm

Infrastructure assets - cost
As per regulatory accounts 8,006.8 76034
Adjustment to opening halance 1,366.0 1,254.7
Disposal in year - -
Infrastructure renewals expenditure capitalised in year 1301 111.3
Cost as per statutory accounts 9,502.9 8,989.4
Infrastructure assets - depreciation
As per regulatory accounts 2,330.3 21827
Adjustment to opening balance 1,369.2 1.251.3
Disposal in year - -
Depreciation charge in year 118.5 ERRA:)
Depreciation as per statutory accounts 3.818.0 3.551.9
Infrastructure assets - net
As per regulatory accounts 5,676.5 5,420.7
infrastructure 8.4 (3.2)
Net bock values as per statutory accounts 56849 54175

Deferred income - grants and contributions

In the statutory accounts deferred income relating to grants and contributions of £37.1 million (2008: £38.8 miflion) is classified as

follows:
- Creditors due within one year £2.7 million (2008: £2.7 million)
- Creditors due after more than one year £34.4 mitlion (2008: £36.1 million)
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Turnover

In the statutory accounts all income relating to renewable energy exported t¢ National Grid and a!l incame from Renewable Obligation
Certificates (ROCs) and ROC bonuses is included in turnover. No adjustment is made for energy generated and used by the company.
However, for the purposes of the regulatory accounts, Ofwat has requested that all income relating to electricity generation is deducted
from operating costs. A reconciliation to the turnover and operating costs shown in the statutory accounts is set out below:

2009

Em

As per regulatory accounts 1.316.5
Income refating to exported energy ROCs, and ROC bonuses 8.4
Turnover per statutory accounts 1.324.9

In 2008 there was no difference between the statutory accounts and regukatory accounts in this respect.

12 Reguiatory capital values

At each price review, The Office of Water Services sets price limits which it considers will enable companies to earn a reasonable return
on capital. The Office of Water Services bases that return on the Regulatory Capital Value {RCV),

The projected outturn for the company's RCV from the December 2004 determination is as follows:

At 31 March
2008 2007 2008 2009 2010
£Em £m Em £m Em
Per determination (at 2002/03 prices) 4,853 4,981 5107 519 5292
Actualfestimated outturn {at average prices) 5,209 5546 5922 6,198 8,173
Regutatory capitat values at 2008/09 prices:
2009
Em
Opening regulatory capital value for the year 5,922
Indexation 176
Opening requlatory capital value at average 2008/09 prices 6,098
Capital expenditure 488
Infrastruciure renewals expenditure 98
Grants and contributions {42)
Depreciation (296)
Infrastructure renewals charge (96)
Outperformance of regulatory assurmptions (52)
Closing regulatory capital value 6,198
Average regulatory capital value 6,148

The RCVs in this table are based on those published by Ofwat in its letter RDO8/06, inflated ta 2008/09 prices. The vatue of the RCV
is protected against inflation by increasing the value each year by RPI,

Capital expenditure and infrastructure renewals expenditure assumed in setiing price limits are added to the RCV. Price setting
assumptions on current cost depreciation, the infrastructure renewals charge, and capital grants and contributions received are deducted
each year.

A company has an incentive o outperform Ofwat's regulatory assumptions and earn a higher rate of return than was assumed when
setting price limits. The RCV is the mechanism used to reflect past capital outperfarmance and transfer the benefit of this to customers
through lower price limits. The level of outperformance is assessed by comparing net actual capital expenditure in the year with Ofwat
prajections, with the outperformance adjustment deducted from the RCV. The benefits of the outperformance are passed on to
customers five years after it has been achieved,

The RCV grows in real terms in the period to 2010, reflecting the scale of the capital programime.
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Supplementary Regulatory Accounting Disclosures — unaudited

Year ended 31 March 2009

Information in respect of transactions during the year with any other business or activity of the Appointee

or any Associated Company

a) Borrowings or sums lent
Sums borrowed by the Appointees during the year from associated companies were;

Principal Interest
ameumts Repayment rates between
£m dates
Severn Trent Plc Borrowed 450 January 2009 1.45-2.39
Severn Trent Utilities Finance Plc Borrowed 17.5 August 2009 2.05
Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited Borrowed 9.8 QOctober 2009 6.41
Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited Borrowed 99 October 2008 5.26
Severn Trent Utilities Finance Limited Borrowed 400.0 January 2018 6.00

b) Dividends paid

The company’s dividend policy is to declare dividends which are consistent with the company’s regulatory obligations and at a level
which is decided each year after consideration of a number of factors, including regulatory uncertainty, market expectations, actual and

potential efficiencies, future cash flow requirements and balance sheet censiderations.

The amount declared is expected ta vary each year as the impact of these factors changes. The ordinary dividend declared and paid by
the company in 2008/09 amounted to £154.7 million (2008: £263.1 million), being 15.47p per share (2008: 26.31p per share).

c) Transfer of assets/liabilities

During the course of the year the Appointees did not acquire any assets/liabilities from any associated business.

d) Supply of services
Services supplied by the Appointees to associated companies:

Nature of ransactions Company Terms Em

Rental of office accommadation Various Market rent 0.2

Service charges in respect of payroll, legal, transport and other Various Cost 0.9

Water, tankering, reception, treatment and disposal of waste Various Market rates 0.4

1.5

Services supplied to the Appointees by associated companies:

Othey Total

Compelitive market turnover

Nature of transactions Company letting testing No market Em,

Asset management Cognica Ltd 0.1 - - O/
Provision of customer care facilities Complete Credit Management Ltd 0.4 - -
Insurance services Derwent Insurance Ltd - 3.5 ~
Analytical services Severn Trent Laboratories Ltd 6.5 - -
Supply of materials Severn Trent Metering Services Ltd 1.8 - 0.1
Meter installation and mainienance Severn Trent Metering Services Ltd 10.5 - -
Supply of materials and other engineering services Severn Trent Services Ltd 0.7 - 0.5
Pass through costs Severn Trent Plc - - 1.2

20.0 3.5 1.8 /

Of the £25.3 million. £12.7 million was spent on investment expenditure.

e) Omission of rights
None

f)  Waivers
None

g) Guarantees
None
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